Clty Of TUkWIla Distribution:

Planning & Economic K toveady Do e
. Z. ldan R. Bianchi

Development Committee D. Quinn C. OFaherty

® Thomas McLeod, Chair L. Humphrey

® Kathy Hougardy

& Zak ldan

AGENDA

MONDAY, DECEMBER 7, 2020 — 5:30 Pm
HAZENUTF-CONFERENCEROOM
{Ateastentranceof City Halh

THIS MEETING WILL NOT BE CONDUCTED AT CITY FACILITIES
BASED ON THE GOVERNOR’S PROCLAMATION 20-28.

THE PHONE NUMBER FOR THE PUBLIC TO LISTEN TO THIS
MEETING IS: 1-253-292-9750, Access Code 157208534#

Item Recommended Action Page
1. BUSINESS AGENDA
a. An ordinance to adopt revisions to the Subdivision a. Forward to 1/11/21 C.O.W. | Pg.1
Code. and 1/18/21 Regular Mtg.

Jaimie Reavis, Senior Planner

b. Seattle Southside Regional Tourism Authority: b. Discussion only. Pg.57
Return on Investment.
Brandon Miles, Business Relations Manager

c. Experience Tukwila: Performance measures. c. Forward to 12/14 C.O.W. Pg.81
Brandon Miles, Business Relations Manager

d. COVID-19: Amending and renewing emergency rules| d. Forward to 12/14 C.O.W. Pg.89

to allow tents in parking lots and temporary signage. Meeting and Special
Brandon Miles, Business Relations Manager Meeting Consent Agenda.
e. 2020 Committee work plan. e. Discussion only. Pg.93

Laurel Humphrey, Legislative Analyst

2. MISCELLANEOUS

Next Scheduled Meeting: January 2021

6. The City of Tukwila strives to accommodate individuals with disabilities.
Please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 206-433-1800 (TukwilaCityClerk@TukwilaWA.gov) for assistance.



mailto:TukwilaCityClerk@TukwilaWA.gov




City of Tukwila

Allan Ekberg, Mayor

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning & Economic Development Committee

FROM: Jack Pace, Director, Department of Community Development
BY: Jaimie Reavis, Senior Planner

CC: Mayor Ekberg

DATE: November 25, 2020

SUBJECT: Updates to subdivision procedures

ISSUE

Should the subdivision procedures in Title 17 and Title 18 of the Tukwila Municipal Code be
amended to create a process to allow for the modifications of preliminary approved plats; modify
the approval process for final plats; allow for the creation of a phasing plan for plats; and modify

the expiration time-period for preliminary plats?

BACKGROUND
Planning Commission Review

The Tukwila Planning Commission at its November 12, 2020 meeting held a public hearing and
provided recommendations on proposed amendments to Title 17 (Subdivisions and Plats) and
Title 18 (Zoning). Two members of the public representing Segale Properties provided
comments. A Comment Letter drafted by Nancy Bainbridge Rogers of Cairncross &
Hempelmann on behalf of Segale Properties was also submitted for review by the Planning
Commissioners prior to the meeting (Attachment C). The Planning Commission Meeting

Minutes are included in Attachment B.

A draft ordinance is attached which includes the
proposed amendments based on Planning Commission
recommendations (Attachment A), as well as some
minor housekeeping text edits. Per the request of the
Planning and Economic Development (PED) Committee
at its October 19, 2020 meeting, a memo from the City
Attorney on the proposed subdivision amendments is
included as Attachment D.

Subdivision Process

The steps in the subdivision process are shown at right.
Steps taken by the applicant are shown in the white
areas, major decision points in the process shown in
black, and construction of project infrastructure in gray.
A subdivision is vested to the regulations in place at the
time an application for a Preliminary Plat is deemed by
the City to be complete. After initial review of the survey
and construction documents, the Preliminary Approval is
granted, which gives the applicant the go-ahead to

Draft survey and engineering
documents submitted for review

Preliminary approval — draft
documents meet code

requirements

Construction permit submitted

\_ Y,
e _ ~
Construction

(installation of access, utilities)

R —
)

Final survey document prepared
and submitted for final approval

L J

Final Approval




INFORMATIONAL MEMO

Page 2

submit construction permits to build project infrastructure to prepare individual lots for sale or

development.

State law requires an expiration date of five years from the date of Preliminary Approval and

provides cities

the authority to adopt extension periods. Property cannot be sold or developed

until Final Approval is granted, through which final signatures are added to the survey and the
survey is recorded to formally establish the new property lines for the new lots.

DISCUSSION

Table 1 summarizes the staff and Planning Commission recommended changes to TMC Title
17 and 18. The proposed subdivision amendments cover four main areas:

1. Adding a process to review proposed modifications to a project after it has received
preliminary approval and before final approval. This option is currently not addressed in
the code for any type of application for the subdivision of land, requiring an applicant to
submit a new application even for minor changes.

Staff Recommendation: DCD Director determines whether the modification is Minor or

Major. Minor modifications may be approved by the Director. Major modifications require
submittal of a new subdivision application. The full text of the staff recommendation is
included below, with language additions recommended by the Planning Commission shown

in italics.

PC Recommendation: Approve staff's recommendation, with the language changes shown

in italic text:

1. Minor modifications proposed by an applicant after a preliminary approval decision
has been issued may be approved by the Director, based on review by muiltiple
departments. The Director may include conditions as part of an approval of a minor
modification to ensure conformance with the criteria below. Minor modifications are
those which:

a.

Do not increase the number of lots beyond the number previously approved, or
which maintain the number of lots, or that decrease the number of lots in the
subdivision below the number previously approved.

Do not decrease the aggregate area of open space, or the design or location of
stormwater systems or roadways in the project by 10% or more.

May realign internal roadways and lot lines, but do not relocate any roadway
access point to an exterior street.

Do not alter the exterior boundaries of the project.

Are consistent with applicable development standards and will not cause the plat
to violate any applicable City policy or regulation.

Are consistent with the conditions of the preliminary approval, provided that a
minor modification may revise conditions of the preliminary approval so long as the
revisions are consistent with the minor modification limitations set by TMC Section
17.12.020.D.a-e.

2. Major modifications are those which, as determined by the Director, are not minor
modifications as defined in this code, and either add property or lots or substantially
change the basic design, density, open space, or other substantive requirement or

provision. If the applicant proposes to make one or more major changes, the revised

plan(s)

shall be processed as a new application.

https://tukwilawa.sharepoint.com/sites/mayorsoffice/cc/CC Docs/Old W/2020 Info Memos/InfoMemo12-7PED_SubdivisionAmendments (BJM

COMMENTS)_LM.docx



*}s3nbaJ UOISUIIXD U YoNS JO MIIABJ S,1013J10
@dDQ 404 B1JD}1JD PIPUIWIWOIDI Jje)S 01 9SuUBYd ON e

suolsiAlpgns paseyd Joy polsad

‘polsad uoiieuidxas Jeah uolieJidxa JeaA-g palinbaus-aiels SUOISU91X3
-G paJinbaJi-a1e3s ayl puoAsqUOISUIIXS JESA-SUIN 3y} puoAaq uoisudIxa JeaA-aaiyl e pue
:saseyd g ueyy asow yum je|d Aleuiwipid e o4 e *$1S9nb3J UOISUIIXD JO MIIASM JedA 3uo paddxa 0} uolleJdidx3 ie|d
‘poliad uonedidxs S$,40103.1Q 4DQ 40} pappe eLId1d) e | 10U UOISUIIXD BUO anoJdde Aleujwiaid
JeaA-g palinbai-a3els ay3y puoAsaquOISUIIXS JESR *SUOISIAIPQNS 40} Aew |enosdde Aseujwijaud uoISIAIpgnS 'y
=931y] :saseyd g 01 dn yum je|d Ateuiwijpdid e 104 e juedijdde wouy 1sanbay | Suolsualxa sanosdde Jo1dauIq dq e 9y} 404 Apoq Sulieay ayL 0SO'VT'LT
‘panss| uaaq Apeaudje sey |eaosddy [1oUNo)
‘lenosdde AJeujwi|a.id 4914 payipow AN Aq |enoudde jeul{ e
pue MaIAaJ 404 Jaulwex] SuleaH ay3 01 yoeq 03 9q 03 pasodoud si Suiseyd (pa41nbau
p|noys ue|d 3uiseyd ay3 ‘panssi usaq sey |enosddy Jl M3IARJ Jaulwex] Sullesy e SI M3IADJ USISap
Aleuiwi|aid J91je palyipow 9g 03 spasu 3uiseyd §| e 'ssadoud ‘lenosddy Aseujwia.ad Jl uoissiwwo) Sujuue|d |enosddy
‘98e3s |enosddy Aseujwiiaid |[enosdde pue malnaud 1e|d |euld ul JO 2w} je Jaujwex3 Suliesay J40) Jaujwex3 3uliesay 0T0'¥0T 8T ue|d Suiseyd ‘¢
je |enosdde pue malaal Jauiwexy Sulesy e agueyd pasodoud 03 anp papasN 9yl Aq |enoisdde pue mainay e | Aq |eroudde Aseulwijaid e ‘Ov0 VT LT
swi}
|eAosdde pue M3IADI SDINPRY e
suolsd3p |epipn|
-isenb |19uno) A1) s9JNpay e
AJeuoi1aiasip-uou S| uoIS|PdQ e
‘paJinbas jou s Suliesay olgnd e
me 91e1s 01 adueyd /T0C e |enosddy
EEL 0TO'V0T'8T PUE M3IASY
je|d AJeujwijaad je passaippe "J1030341d 1eld ‘0€0°0T°LT 1e|d jeuld ¢
‘uollepuUlWWOI3l S J4e3s anoiddy 9Je S3NSS| dAIIURISANS ad>d ay1 Aq |enosdde aainesisiuiwpy | [eul4 sanosdde [1ouno) AuD ‘0SOVT LT
‘uoneoldde
UOISIAIPQNS M3U B JO |e11iwgns Joley
aJinbau suoneoyyipow Jolely e pue JoulN —
191197 JUBWWO) *J030341d @Oa Aq panoidde 1e]d Aeuiwijaid
ul papinoJd se ) pue ‘e elualud 0} d3en3ue| ppy e 9q Aew suoliedljipow JOUll\ e sjenosdde 010 vOT'ST /lenosddy
*} sanoadde 40199.41Q dDQ 240499 uoledyipow *1ofe|A 40 Aseurwiaad 3uiAjipow ‘020 VT LT Aseurwinaad
e M3IA3J Sluswiedap ||e aJinbas 01 98endue| "SIy} | JOUlN SI uolealipow ayl Jayiaym J0J DAL @Y1 ul ssad0ud ‘020°CT' LT ejo
JO UOIHPPE Y1IM SUOIIEPUSWWODAI S J4els dnouddy e J0} 9p02 9y} 01 ss9d0.4d e ppe 0] UO UOIJBUIWIRIBP J0DIIQ dId e ou si aJay3 Ajjuauin) ‘0€0°80°LT UonedIpoN T
NOILVAN3ININODTY SNOILO3S
NOILVANININOD3Y NOISSININOD ONINNV1d JONVHI 404 NOSV3d 44V1IS/3ONVHO d3s0dOoud $S300¥d ONILSIX3 JNL N1l

sabueyn papuawiwiosay uoissiwwod Buluue|d pue jjels pue sassasold bBuiysixg jo Alewwng | ajqel




INFORMATIONAL MEMO
Page 4

2. Changing the procedures and decision maker for Final Plat approval of a subdivision
of 10 or more lots (called a plat). A plat currently receives Preliminary Plat approval following
a public hearing by the Hearing Examiner (or Planning Commission when there is an associated
design review). The Final Plat decision is currently made by the City Council following a public
hearing.

Staff Recommendation: DCD Director issues the Final Plat decision, based on review and
written findings from multiple departments.

PC Recommendation: Approve staff's recommendation to have the process for Final Plat
Approval changed from City Council to DCD Director.

3. Changing the procedures and decision maker for approval of a subdivision phasing
plan. The current process is for review and approval of a subdivision phasing plan to occur at
the Final Plat stage when the applicant goes to the City Council to receive Final Plat approval of
the first phase of a phased subdivision.

Staff Recommendation: Hearing Examiner review and approval at Preliminary Approval stage
(or by the Planning Commission if there is an associated design review). DCD Director review
and approval if modifications to the approved phasing plan are proposed after Preliminary
Approval has been issued.

PC Recommendation: Hearing Examiner review and approval of all phasing proposals or
modifications to phasing plans (or Planning Commission when there is an associated design
review).

4. Allowing DCD Director approval of subdivision extensions, and an additional
extension time-period for phased subdivisions. Phased subdivisions allow infrastructure
to be constructed incrementally, so that one phase may receive Final Plat approval while
subsequent phases are still under construction. The current expiration for a phased
subdivision is the same as for a subdivision that is not phased: 5 years from the date of
preliminary approval, with the option for one, 1-year extension upon request to the Hearing
Examiner.

Staff Recommendation: The recommendation is to have the DCD Director issue approval of
subdivision extension requests according to a set of criteria (included below this paragraph)
and allow a longer extension period of up to 3 years for phased subdivisions. The staff
recommendation of 3 years is different from the Planning Commission recommendations
which allow up to up to three, 3-year extensions for subdivisions with more than two phases.
The staff recommendation of a shorter extension period from the Planning Commission
recommendations is based on City Attorney input and recommendations (Attachment D),
vesting implications associated with the date of Preliminary Approval, the desire to have
infrastructure finalized and new lots available for development, and staff review of
subdivision extension periods in other jurisdictions.

Criteria for approval of a subdivision extension:

1. A written request for extension is filed at least 30 days before the expiration of the
preliminary plat; and

2. Unforeseen circumstances or conditions which are not the result of voluntary actions of
the applicant necessitate the extension of the preliminary plat: and



INFORMATIONAL MEMO
Page 5

3. Conditions in the immediate vicinity of the subject property have not changed
substantially since the preliminary plat was first approved; and

4. An extension of the preliminary plat will not cause substantial detriment to existing
uses in the immediate vicinity of the subject property or to the community as a whole;
and

5. The applicant has demonstrated reasonable diligence in attempting to meet the time
limit imposed; and

6. The preliminary plat substantially complies with applicable City Code provisions in
effect on the date that the application for extension was made.

PC Recommendation: Allow DCD Director to approve subdivision extensions according to staff-
recommended criteria. For a preliminary plat with up to two phases, one 3-year extension can
be granted for a maximum time-period of 8 years from the date of preliminary approval to the
date of recording of the final phase. For a preliminary plat with more than two phases, up to
three 3-year extensions can be granted for a maximum time-period of 14 years between the
date of preliminary approval and the date of recording of the final phase of a phased
development.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
None.

RECOMMENDATION

The PED Committee is being asked to provide direction on Planning Commission
recommendations and forward the ordinance to the January 11, 2021 Committee of the Whole
Meeting for a public hearing and review. COW is being asked to forward a recommendation to
approve, deny or modify the draft ordinance at the Regular Meeting on January 18, 2021.

ATTACHMENTS
A. Draft Ordinance
B. Planning Commission meeting minutes and staff report from November 12, 2020
C. Comment letter from Nancy Bainbridge Rogers, Cairncross & Hempelmann on behalf of
D.

Segale Properties LLC
City Attorney Memo

https://tukwilawa.sharepoint.com/sites/mayorsoffice/cc/CC Docs/Old W/2020 Info Memos/InfoMemo12-7PED_SubdivisionAmendments (BJM
COMMENTS)_LM.docx






AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUKWILA,
WASHINGTON, AMENDING VARIOUS ORDINANCES AS CODIFIED
IN TUKWILA MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 17, “SUBDIVISIONS AND
PLATS,” AND TITLE 18, “ZONING,” AT THE SECTIONS AS STATED
HEREIN, TO INCORPORATE CODE AMENDMENTS PROVIDING A
PROCESS TO MODIFY A SUBDIVISION PROJECT AFTER IT HAS
RECEIVED PRELIMINARY APPROVAL, TO DELEGATE FINAL PLAT
APPROVAL TO THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT,
TO CHANGE THE PROCEDURES FOR PHASING OF A
SUBDIVISION, AND TO PROVIDE FOR ADDITIONAL EXTENSIONS
TO THE PRELIMINARY APPROVAL EXPIRATION OF PHASED
SUBDIVISIONS; REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2499; PROVIDING
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the rules, regulations, requirements, and standards for subdividing land
in the City of Tukwila are contained in Title 17, “Subdivisions and Plats,” of the Tukwila
Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, permit application types and procedures, including those for subdividing
land in Tukwila, are contained within Title 18, “Zoning,” of the Tukwila Municipal Code;
and

WHEREAS, the Tukwila Municipal Code (TMC) does not currently provide a process
for modification of most types of subdivisions after preliminary approval has been issued
and before final approval is provided; and

WHEREAS, the need for a process to modify a subdivision in between the preliminary
approval and final approval stages of a project has arisen multiple times, requiring an
applicant to withdraw preliminary approved projects in order to make modifications that
can at times be minor in nature; and

WHEREAS, the addition of a process to modify a subdivision in between the
preliminary approval and final approval stages will provide City staff and applicants
direction on how to address proposed minor and major modifications after a project has
received preliminary approval; and

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 1 of 26



WHEREAS, a 2017 update to Section 58.17.100 of the Revised Code of Washington
allows the City Council, by ordinance, to delegate final plat approval to an established
planning commission or agency, or to such other administrative personnel; and

WHEREAS, TMC Section 17.14.040 outlines the process for review and approval of
a proposal to record a subdivision in phases, which currently is tied to final plat review by
the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the Hearing Examiner is the hearing body that reviews a subdivision
preliminary plat (unless there is an associated design review whereby the subdivision
preliminary plat public hearing and decision can be combined for review by the Planning
Commission); and

WHEREAS, a proposal for a phased subdivision can be reviewed by the Hearing
Examiner as a Type 3 decision, (or by the Planning Commission as a Type 4 decision if
there is an associated design review); and

WHEREAS, there is a need to offer a process to modify an approved phasing plan;
and

WHEREAS, the Tukwila Planning Commission held a public hearing and provided
recommendations on amendments to the subdivision procedures in Title 17 and Title 18
of the Tukwila Municipal Code at its November 12, 2020 meeting;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUKWILA,
WASHINGTON, HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Ordinance No. 1833 §1 (part), as codified at Tukwila Municipal Code
(TMC) Section 17.08.030, is hereby amended to read as follows:

17.08.030 Preliminary approval

A. In order to receive preliminary approval, the applicant must submit to BEBthe
Director (as defined in TMC Chapter 18.06)-a complete application, in quantities specified
by the CityPEB, and meet the criteria for approval.

B. A complete application consists of the following:

1. A completed application on a form provided by the Department—of
Community-Development City and fee as identified in TMC Chapter 18.88.

2. A neat and readable plan drawn to a standard decimal (engineer) scale. A
survey may be required if it is determined that level of information is needed to ensure
the adjustment meets the approval criteria. The plan shall show the following information:

a. Property lines, with those that remain in their existing location shown as
a solid line, those that are being moved or removed shown as a dashed line, and those
that have been relocated shown as a solid line and clearly identified as a relocated line.

b. Dimensions of all property lines and area of the lots, before and after the
adjustment.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 2 of 26



c. Location and floor area of all structures on the site, and their setbacks
from existing and new property lines.

d. Location and purpose of all easements on the site.

e. Location, purpose and legal description of any new or extended
easements proposed.

f. Location of adjacent public roads and points of access from the public
road(s) if a lot does not front on a public road; show how and where access is provided.

g. Location of existing utilities and utility easements.

h. Calculations which-that demonstrate that required yards of the Uniform
Building Code are met.

3. Before and after legal description of the affected lots.
C. In order to approve a boundary line adjustment or lot consolidation, the Short
Subdivision Committee shall determine the project complies with the following criteria:
1. No additional lots, sites, parcels, tracts or divisions are created.

2. The adjustment will not create non-conforming lots with respect to zoning
dimension and area standards, zoning setbacks and lot area coverage standards.

3. The degree of non-conformance on existing non-conforming lots with
respect to zoning dimension and area standards, zoning setbacks and floor area ratio are
not increased.

4. All lots have legal access to a public road. Existing required private access
road improvements and easements are not diminished below subdivision ordinance
standards for lots that are served by a private access road.

5. Existing easements for utilities are appropriate for their intended function, or
they are extended, moved or otherwise altered to an appropriate location.

6. The adjustment does not create any non-conformities with respect to the
Uniform Building Code or any other locally administered regulation.

D. Minor and major modifications to a preliminary approval.

1. Minor modifications proposed by an applicant after a preliminary approval
decision has been issued may be approved by the Director as a Type 1 decision, based
on review and recommendations of the Short Subdivision Committee. The Director may
include conditions as part of an approval of a minor modification to ensure conformance
with the criteria below. Minor modifications are those which:

a. Do notincrease the number of lots beyond the number previously approved,
or which maintain the number of lots, or that decrease the number of lots in the subdivision
below the number previously approved.

b. Do not decrease the aggregate area of open space, or the design or location
of stormwater systems or roadways in the project by 10% or more.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 3 of 26



10

c. May realign internal roadways and lot lines, but do not relocate any roadway
access point to an exterior street.

d. Do not alter the exterior boundaries of the project.

e. Are consistent with applicable development standards and will not cause the
boundary line adjustment or lot consolidation to violate any applicable City policy or

requlation.

f. _Are consistent with the conditions of the preliminary approval, provided that
a_minor modification may revise conditions of the preliminary approval so long as the
revisions are consistent with the minor modification limitations set by TMC Section
17.08.030.D.a-e.

2. Major modifications are those which, as determined by the Director, are not
minor modifications as defined in this code, and either add property or lots or substantially
change the basic design, density, open space, or other substantive requirement or
provision. If the applicant proposes to make one or more major changes, the revised
plan(s) shall be processed as a new application.

Section 2. Ordinance No. 1833 §1 (part), as codified at TMC Section 17.12.020, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

17.12.020 Preliminary short plat approval

A. Application/fees. The following items are required, in quantities specified by
BEbthe City, for a complete Short Plat application for preliminary approval. Items may
be waived if, in the judgment of the Short Subdivision Committee, they are not applicable
to the proposal:

1. Items contained in TMC Section 18.104.060.

2. Completed Preliminary Short Plat Application Form as prescribed by the
DBCDb-DirecterCity with fee as identified in TMC Chapter 18.88.

Completed Application Checklist.

A complete SEPA Checklist application if project is not exempt from SEPA.
Complete applications for other required land use approvals.

A vicinity map showing location of the site.

A survey prepared to the standards identified in TMC Section 17.04.060.
Site and development plans which-that provide the following information:

© N o g b~ w

a. The owners of adjacent land and the names of any adjacent
subdivisions.

b. Lines marking the boundaries of the existing lot(s) (any existing lot to be
eliminated should be a dashed line and so noted).

c. Locations of existing and proposed public street rights-of-way and
easements and private access easements.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 4 of 26



d. Location, floor area and setbacks of all existing structures on the site.
e. Lot area, lot line dimensions and average widths for each lot.
f. Location of proposed new property lines and numbering of each lot.

g. Location, dimension and purpose of existing and proposed easements.
Provide recorded documents which—that identify the nature and extent of existing
easements.

h. Location of any proposed dedications.

i. Existing and proposed topography at two-foot contour intervals,
extending to five feet beyond the project boundaries.

j-  Location of any sensitive-critical areas and sensitive-critical -area buffers
(slopes 15% or greater, wetlands or watercourses) on the site.

k. Location, size and species of any trees located within a sensitive-critical
area or its buffer or the shoreline zone unless none of these trees are to be removed and
their location is not likely to create undue hardship on individual lots with respect to TMC
Chapter 18.54, “Urban Forestry and Tree Regulations.”

|.  Location of existing and/or proposed fire hydrants to serve the project.

m. Description, location and size of existing and proposed utilities, storm
drainage facilities and roads to serve the lots.

n. Expected location of new buildings and driveways, including finished
floor elevations of the buildings.

9. Letter of water and sewer availability if the provider is other than the City of
Tukwila.

B. Review procedures.
1. Referral to Other Departments. Upon receipt of an application for a short

subdivision, the Bepartment-of Community-DevelopmentDirector shall transmit one copy
of the application to each member of the Short Subdivision Committee, and one copy to
any department or agency deemed necessary.

2. Short Subdivision Committee Decision. The Short Subdivision
Committee may approve, approve with modifications, or deny the application for a short
subdivision pursuant to Type 2 permit procedures. No formal meeting of the Committee
is required so long as the Chair obtains the recommendations and consent of the other
members of the Committee before issuing a decision.

C. Criteria for preliminary short plat approval. The Short Subdivision Committee
shall base its decision on an application on the following criteria:

1. The proposed Short Plat is in conformance with the Tukwila Comprehensive
Plan, and any other such adopted plans.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 5 of 26

11



12

2. Appropriate provisions have been made for water, storm drainage, erosion
control and sanitary sewage disposal for the short plat which-that are consistent with
current standards and plans.

3. Appropriate provisions have been made for road, utilities and other
improvements which-that are consistent with current standards and plans.

4. Appropriate provisions have been made for dedications, easements and
reservations.

5. The design, shape and orientation of the proposed lots are appropriate to
the proposed use for which the lots are intended and are compatible with the area in
which they are located.

6. Appropriate provisions for the maintenance of commonly owned private
facilities have been made.

7. The short plat complies with the relevant requirements of the Tukwila
Subdivision Ordinance.

8. The short plat complies with the requirements of the Tukwila Zoning
Ordinance and other relevant local regulations.

D. Minor and major modifications to a preliminary short plat approval.

1. Minor modifications proposed by an applicant after a preliminary approval
decision has been issued may be approved by the Director as a Type 2 decision, based
on review and recommendations of the Short Subdivision Committee. The Director may
include conditions as part of an approval of a minor modification to ensure conformance
with the criteria below. Minor modifications are those which:

a. Do not increase the number of lots beyond the number previously
approved, or which maintain the number of lots, or that decrease the number of lots in the
subdivision below the number previously approved.

b. Do not decrease the aggregate area of open space, or the design or
location of stormwater systems or roadways in the project by 10% or more.

c. May realign internal roadways and lot lines, but do not relocate any
roadway access point to an exterior street.

d. Do not alter the exterior boundaries of the project.

e. Are consistent with applicable development standards and will not cause
the short plat to violate any applicable City policy or regulation.

f. Are consistent with the conditions of the preliminary approval, provided
that a minor modification may revise conditions of the preliminary approval so long as the
revisions are consistent with the minor modification limitations set by TMC Section
17.12.020.D.a-e.

2. Major modifications are those which, as determined by the Director, are not
minor modifications as defined in this code, and either add property or lots or substantially
change the basic design, density, open space, or other substantive requirement or

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 6 of 26



provision. If the applicant proposes to make one or more major changes, the revised
plan(s) shall be processed as a new application.

Section 3. Ordinance Nos. 2124 §1 and 1833 §1 (part), as codified at TMC Section
17.14.020, are hereby amended to read as follows:

17.14.020 Preliminary plat

A. Decision process. Applications for preliminary plat approval shall be processed
as a Type 3 decision (or Type 4 decision_when there is an associated design review)
subject to the provisions of TMC Section 18.108.6568030 (or TMC Section 18.108.040).

B. Application. The following items are required, in quantities specified by BED
the City, for a complete application for preliminary plat approval. ltems may be waived if,
in the judgment of the BEB-Director, the items are not applicable to the particular
proposal:

1. Completed Preliminary Plat Application Form and fee, as identified in TMC
Chapter 18.88.

2. Completed Application Checklist.

A complete SEPA Checklist application if project is not exempt from SEPA.
Complete applications for other required land use approvals.

A vicinity map showing location of the site.

A survey prepared to the standards identified in TMC _Section 17.04.060.

7. All existing conditions shall be delineated. Site and development plans shall
provide the following information:

o 0 koW

a. Owners of adjacent land and the names of any adjacent subdivisions.

b. Lines marking the boundaries of the existing lot(s). (Any existing lot to
be eliminated should be a dashed line and so noted.)

c. Approximate names, locations, widths and dimensions of existing and
proposed public street rights-of-way and easements and private access easements,
parks and other open spaces, reservations, and utilities.

d. Location, floor area and setbacks of all existing structures on the site.
e. Lot area, dimensions and average widths for each lot.
f. Location of proposed new property lines and numbering of each lot.

g. Location, dimension and purpose of existing and proposed easements.
Provide recorded documents that identify the nature and extent of existing easements.

h. Location of any proposed dedications.

i. Existing and proposed topography at two-foot contour intervals
extending to five feet beyond project boundaries.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 7 of 26

13



14

j-  Location of any sensitive-critical areas and sensitive-critical area buffers
(slopes 15% or greater, wetlands or watercourses) on the site.

k. Location, size and species of any trees located within a sensitive-critical
area or its buffer or the shoreline zone unless none of these trees are to be removed and
their location is not likely to create undue hardship on individual lots with respect to TMC
Chapter 18.54, "Urban Forestry and Tree Regulations."

|.  Source of water supply, method of sewage disposal, and manner of
surface runoff control.

m. Location of existing and proposed fire hydrants to serve the project.

n. Description, location and size of existing and proposed utilities, storm
drainage facilities and roads to serve the lots.

0. A survey of existing trees and vegetation with a retention/removal plan
for the preservation of significant trees and vegetation.

p. Expected location of new buildings, their driveways and finished floor
elevations.

8. Letter of water and sewer availability if the provider is other than the City of
Tukwila.

9. Two sets of mailing labels for all property owners and tenants (residents or
businesses) within 500 feet of the subdivision.

10. ltems required by TMC Section 18.104.060 not already listed above.

C. Review procedures.
1. Referral to Other Offices. Upon receipt of a complete preliminary plat

application, the Bepartment-of Community-DevelopmentDirector shall transmit a notice
of application and one copy of the preliminary plat to each of the following offices, where
appropriate: Public Works, Building Division, Fire Department, Police Department, King
County Health Department, the appropriate school district, and each public utility agency
serving the area in which the property proposed for subdivision is located.

2. Departmental Approval. The Public Works Department and other
interested departments and agencies shall review the preliminary plat and submit to the
Department of Community Development written comments with respect to the preliminary
plat decision criteria.

23- Public Notice and Public Hearing. The process for public notice, hearings,
decisions and appeals shall be as provided for Type 3 decisions (or Type 4 decisions _if
the plat is combined with an associated design review) as identified in TMC Title 18,
“Zoning Code.”

D. Criteria for preliminary plat approval. The Hearing Examiner (or Planning
Commission_if there is an associated design review) shall base its decision on an
application for preliminary plat approval on the following criteria:

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 8 of 26



1. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Tukwila
Comprehensive Plan and any other City adopted plans.

2. Appropriate provisions have been made for water, storm drainage, erosion
control and sanitary sewage disposal for the subdivision that are consistent with current
standards and plans.

3. Appropriate provisions have been made for road, utilities and other
improvements that are consistent with current standards and plans.

4. Appropriate provisions have been made for dedications, easements and
reservations.

5. The design, shape and orientation of the proposed lots are appropriate to
the proposed use for which the lots are intended and are compatible with the area in
which they are located.

6. The subdivision complies with the relevant requirements of the Tukwila
Subdivision and Zoning Ordinances, and all other relevant local regulations.

7. Appropriate provisions for maintenance of privately owned common facilities
have been made.

8. The subdivision complies with RCW 58.17.110.

E. Minor and major modifications to an approved preliminary plat.

1.  Minor modifications proposed by an applicant after a preliminary approval
decision has been issued may be approved by the Director as a Type 2 decision, based
on review and recommendations of City departments including Public Works, Fire,
Building, and Planning. The Director may include conditions as part of an approval of a
minor modification to ensure conformance with the criteria below. Minor modifications
are those which:

a. Do notincrease the number of lots in the subdivision beyond the number
previously approved, or which maintain the number of lots, or that decrease the number
of lots in the subdivision below the number previously approved.

b. Do not decrease the aggregate area of open space, or the design or
location of stormwater systems or roadways in the subdivision by 10% or more.

c. May realign internal roadways and lot lines, but do not relocate any
roadway access point to an exterior street from the plat.

d. Do not alter the exterior boundaries of the subdivision.

e. Are consistent with applicable development standards and will not cause
the subdivision to violate any applicable City policy or requlation.

f. Are consistent with the conditions of the preliminary approval, provided
that a minor modification may revise conditions of the preliminary approval so long as the
revisions are consistent with the minor modification limitations set by TMC Section
17.14.020.E.a-e.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 9 of 26

15



16

2. Major modifications are those which, as determined by the Director, are not
minor modifications as defined in this code, and either add property or lots or substantially
change the basic design, density, open space, or other substantive requirement or
provision. If the applicant proposes to make one or more major changes, the revised
plan(s) shall be processed as a new application.

Section 4. Ordinance No. 1833 §1 (part), as codified at TMC Section 17.14.030, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

17.14.030 Final plat

A. Application. The following items are required, in quantities specified by BEH
the City, for a complete application for final plat approval. ltems may be waived if in the
judgment of the BED Director said items are not applicable to the particular proposal:

1. Completed Application Form and fee as identified in TMC Chapter 18.88.
2. Completed Application Checklist.

3. Copies and one original of the final plat survey in conformance with the
standards set forth in TMC Section 17.04.060.

4. A plat certificate from a title insurance company documenting the ownership
and title of all interested parties in the plat, subdivision or dedication, and listing all
encumbrances. The certificate must be dated within 45 calendar days prior to the date
of filing the application for final plat approval.

5. Private covenants intended to be recorded with the plat.

6. Any documentation necessary to demonstrate conditions of preliminary plat
approval have been met.

7. King County Assessor's maps which shows the location of each property
within 500 feet of the subdivision; two sets of mailing labels for all property owners and
tenants (residents or businesses) within 500 feet of the subdivision.

8. Maintenance agreements, easements and other documents ready for
recording.

9. Signatures on the following certificates on the face of the plat (when
appropriate) from the surveyor that prepared the plat, the King County Treasurer, Seattle-
King County Health Department, City of Tukwila Finance Director, Owner’s affidavit and
certificate of dedication as identified in TMC Section47#04-060(h 17.04.060.B.2.

B. Final Plat Review Procedures. Applications for final plat approval shall be
processed as a Type 52 decision subject to the provisions of TMC Section18-108-050
18.108.020.

1. Referral to Other Departments and Agencies. The Department—of

Community-DevelopmentDirector shall distribute the final plat to all departments and
agencies who receiveding the preliminary plat, and to any other departments, special

purpose districts and other governmental agencies deemed necessary.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 10 of 26



2. Departmental Approval. The Public Works Department and other
interested departments and agencies shall review the final plat and submit to the
Department of Community Development written comments with respect to the final plat
decision criteria. If the final plat is in order, the Public Works Director shall sign the
appropriate certificates on the mylar original.

3. Filing Final Plat.

a. Before the final plat is submitted to the City-CouncilDirector, it shall be
S|gned by the City Treasurer (Finance Dlrector) and the Director of Public Works;—and
. Upon approval by the Gity
GQH—HGHDIFGCTOF it shall be S|gned by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk.

b. The applicant shall file the final plat with the King County Department of
Records and Elections. The plat will be considered complete when a copy of the recorded

documents is returned to the DirectorBepartment-of-Community-Development.

C. Criteria for final plat approval. In approving the final plat, the Gity-Ceuncil
Director shall find:

1. That the proposed final plat bears the required certificates and
statements of approval.

2. That atitle insurance report furnished by the subdivider confirms the title
of the land, and the proposed subdivision is vested in the name of the owner(s) whose
signature(s) appears on the plat certificate.

3. That the facilities and improvements required to be provided by the
subdivider have been completed or, alternatively, that the subdivider has submitted with
the proposed final plat a performance bond or other security in conformance with TMC
Section 17.24.030.

4. Thatthe platis certified as accurate by the land surveyor responsible for
the plat.

5. That the plat is in conformance with the approved preliminary plat.

6. That the plat meets the requirements of Chapter 58.17 RCW and other
applicable state and local laws which were in effect at the time of preliminary plat
approval.

Section 5. Ordinance No. 1833 §1 (part), as codified at TMC Section 17.14.040, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

17.14.040 Phasing

A. Approval of phasing plan. The subdivider may develop and record the
subdivision in phases. Any phasing proposal shall be submitted for-City-Ceuneil Hearing
Examiner review at the time at which a final-platfor-thefirst phasepreliminary plat is
submitted. If there is an associated design review application, the phasing proposal and
associated preliminary plat may be combined with the design review application and
submitted for Planning Commission review. If changes to an approved phasing plan are
proposed, they shall be resubmitted for review by the Hearing Examiner (or Planning

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 11 of 26

17



18

Commission if the original phasing plan and preliminary plat were approved by the
Planning Commission). Approval of the phasing plan shall be based upon making the
following findings:

1. The phasing plan includes all land contained within the approved preliminary
plat, including areas where off-site improvements are being made.

2. The sequence and timing of development is identified on a map.

3. [Each phase shall consist of a contiguous group of lots that meets all pertinent
development standards on its own. The phase cannot rely on future phases for meeting
any City codes.

4. Each phase provides adequate circulation and utilities. Public Works has
determined that all street and other public improvements, including but not limited to
drainage and erosion control improvements, are assured. Deferment of improvements
may be allowed pursuant to TMC Chapter 17.24.

5.
HMes&an%%mn—&gmMed—The flrst phase submltted for fmal subd|V|S|on approval
must be recorded within five years of the date of preliminary plat approval, unless an
extension is granted pursuant to TMC Section 17.14.050.C and TMC Section
17.14.050.D.

Section 6. Ordinance Nos. 2124 §2 and 1833 §1 (part), as codified at TMC Section
17.14.050, are hereby amended to read as follows:

17.14.050 Expiration

A. The preliminary plat approval for a_subdivision that is not phased pursuant to
TMC Section 17.14.040 shall expire unless a complete application for final plat meeting

aII requwements of this chapter is submltted to the Iukmla—Glty—GeuneH—Dlrector feF

W|th|n f|ve years of the
date of prellmlnaw pIat approval prowded that the D|rector may extend a preliminary plat
pursuant to TMC

if the date of preliminary plat approval is on or after January 1, 2015_
Sectlon 17.40. 050 B and TMC Sectlon 17 40 05 D—pFevlded—that—ﬁmat—elat—meetmg—aH

B. The hearingbody-ofthepreliminaryapprovalDirector may approve one extension

not to exceed one year.

C__The preliminary plat approval for a phased subdivision approved pursuant to
TMC Section 17.14.040 shall expire unless the first phase of the final subdivision approval
is recorded within five years of the date of the preliminary plat approval; provided that the
Director may extend a preliminary plat that has up to two phases for three additional years
beyond the period provided in TMC Section 17.14.050.A. For preliminary plats that have
more than two approved phases, the Director may extend a preliminary plat for a total of

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 12 of 26



9 years with first extension of three years, and two subsequent extensions of three years

each. In no case shall the total time period between the date of preliminary approval and

the date of recording of the final phase of a phased development exceed 14 years.

D. The following criteria shall be used in review of an extension request for a

subdivision preliminary plat approval:

1. A written request for extension is filed at least 30 days before the expiration

of the preliminary plat; and

2. Unforeseen circumstances or conditions that are not the result of voluntary

actions of the applicant necessitate the extension of the preliminary plat; and

3. Conditions in the immediate vicinity of the subject property have not changed

substantially since the preliminary plat was first approved; and

4. An extension of the preliminary plat will not cause substantial detriment to

existing uses in the immediate vicinity of the subject property or to the community as a

whole; and

5. The applicant has demonstrated reasonable diligence in attempting to meet

the time limit imposed; and

6. The preliminary plat substantially complies with applicable City code

provisions in effect on the date the application for extension was made.

Section 7. Ordinance Nos. 1971 §21 and 1833 §1 (part), as codified at TMC Section
17.20.030, are hereby amended to read as follows:

17.20.030 General Standards

A. Environmental Considerations.

1. Sensitive-Critical Areas. Land which-that contains a sensitive-critical area
or its buffer as defined in TMC Title 18, or is subject to the flood zone control ordinance
as defined in TMC Chapter 16.52, shall be platted to reflect the standards and
requirements of the sensitive-critical areas overlay zone, TMC Chapter 18.45, the planned
residential development overlay if required pursuant to TMC Chapter 18.46, and/or the
flood zone control ordinance, TMC Chapter 16.52. No lot shall be created that does not
contain an adequate building site, given the environmental considerations of the lot and
current development standards.

2. Trees. In addition to meeting the requirements of TMC Chapter 18.54,
“Urban Forestry and Tree Regulations,” every reasonable effort shall be made to preserve
existing trees and vegetation, and integrate them into the subdivision's design.

B. Compatibility with Existing Land Use and Plans.

1. Buffer between uses. Where single-family residential subdivisions are to
be adjacent to multiple-family, commercial or industrial land use districts, and where
natural separation does not exist, adequate landscape buffer strips and/or solid fences
for screening shall be provided.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 13 of 26

19



20

2. Conformity with existing plans. The location of all streets shall conform
to any adopted plans for streets in the City. If a subdivision is located in the area of an
officially designated trail, provisions may be made for reservation of the right-of-way or
for easements to the City for trail purposes. The proposed subdivision shall respond to
and complement City ordinances, resolutions, and comprehensive plans.

3. Other City regulations. All subdivisions shall comply with all adopted City
regulations. In the event of a conflict, the more restrictive regulation shall apply.

4. Accessory structures. If a subdivision, short plat, or boundary line
adjustment in a residential zone would result in an accessory structure remaining alone
on a lot, the structure must be demolished before preliminary approval, or the owner must
provide a bond or other financial guarantee acceptable to the Director in the amount of
150% of the cost of demolition and assurance that the accessory structure will be
demolished if a residence is not built on the lot within 12 months of final approval.

C. Streets.

1. Extension. Proposed street systems shall extend existing streets at the
same or greater width, unless otherwise approved by the Department of Public Works
and authorized by the City-Ceuneil-Director in approval of the plat. Where appropriate,
streets shall be extended to the boundaries of the plat to ensure access to neighboring
properties. The City’s goal is to have an integrated system of local streets whenever
practical. Grading of steep topography may be necessary to achieve this objective.
However, in sensitive-critical areas, the layout and construction of streets shall follow the
standards and procedures of the sensitive—critical areas overlay zone. Dedication of
additional right-of-way may be required for a short plat when it is necessary to meet the
minimum street width standards or when lack of such dedication would cause or
contribute to an unsafe road or intersection.

2. Names. All proposed street names or numbers shall be subject to approval
by the Department of Community Development.

3. Intersections. Any intersection of public streets, whatever the classification,
shall be at right angles as nearly as possible and not be offset insofar as practical.

4. Street layout. Street layout shall provide for the most advantageous
development of the subdivision, adjoining areas, and the entire neighborhood. Evaluation
of street layout shall take into consideration potential circulation solutions. While it is
important to minimize the impact to the topography from creating an integrated road
system, improved site development and circulation solutions shall not be sacrificed to
minimize the amount of cut and fill requirements of the proposal. Where sensitive-critical
areas are impacted, the standards and procedures for rights-of-way in the sensitive
critical areas overlay zone shall be followed.

5. Private access roads may be authorized if:

a. Allowing private access roads in the area being subdivided will not
adversely affect future circulation in neighboring parcels of property; and

b. Adequate and reasonable provisions are made for the future
maintenance and repair of the proposed private access roads; and

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 14 of 26



c. The proposed private access roads can accommodate potential full
(future) development on the lots created; and

d. For residential subdivisions, the proposed private access roads do not
serve more than four lots nor are more than 200 feet in length. Those access roads 150
feet or greater in length shall have a turnaround built to Fire Department standards.

e. For commercial and industrial subdivisions, when private access roads
are authorized, there shall be a minimum easement width of 40 feet. With the exception
of minimum easement widths, private access roads shall be designed and constructed in
accordance with the Department of Public Works standards, and zoning setbacks shall
be required as though the easement were a public right-of-way.

6. Public roads.

a. Right-of-way and paving widths for public roads shall be based as shown
in the following table. The minimum paving and right-of-way width shall be used unless
the City Engineer demonstrates a wider width is needed due to site circumstances,
including but not limited to topography, traffic volume, street patterns, on-street parking,
lot patterns, land use and bike and transit facilities, that justify an increase in width.

Roadway
Type of Street Right-of-Way Pavement
Principal Arterial 80 - 100 feet 48 - 84 feet
Minor Arterial 60 - 80 feet 36 - 64 feet
Collector Arterial 60 - 80 feet 24 - 48 feet
Access Road 50 - 60 feet 28 - 36 feet
Cul-De-Sac
Roadway 40 feet 26 feet
Turnaround 92 feet (dia.) 81 feet (dia.)
Alley 20 feet 15 feet
Private Access Roads
Residential 20 feet 20 feet
Commercial 40 feet 28 feet

b. Design: The design and alignment of all public streets shall conform to
the following standards unless otherwise approved by the Department of Public Works:

(1) Cul-de-sacs: Cul-de-sacs are not allowed unless there is no
reasonable alternative or the cul-de-sac is shown on an officially adopted street plan.
When allowed, they shall not exceed a length of 600 feet unless the Gity-Ceunecil-City
determines that adequate alternative emergency access will be provided.

(2) Street Grades: Street grades shall not exceed 15%. However,
provided there are no vehicular access points, grades may be allowed up to 18%, for not
more than 200 feet when:

(a) Exceeding the grades would facilitate a through street and
connection with the larger neighborhood;

(b) The greater grade would minimize disturbance of sensitive
critical slopes;

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton

Page 15 of 26

21



22

(c) The Fire Marshal grants approval of the grade transition; and

(d) Tangents, horizontal curves, vertical curves, and right-of-way
improvements conform to Department of Public Works standards.

c. Full width improvement:

(1) When interior to a subdivision or a short plat of five or more lots, all
publicly owned streets shall be designed and installed to full width improvement as
provided below:

(a) Shall be graded as necessary to conform to Department of
Public Works standards.

(b) Shall be of asphaltic concrete according to Department of
Public Works standards.

(c) Shall have permanent concrete curbs and gutters according to
Department of Public Works standards.

(d) Shall have storm drains consisting of the proper size pipe and
catch basins; sizes to be approved by the Department of Public Works prior to the public
hearing for the preliminary plat.

(e) Shall have sidewalks provided at a minimum width as specified
in TMC Chapter 11.12.

(2) When interior to a short plat of four or fewer lots, all public streets
and all privately owned streets that have the potential to serve five or more lots shall be
designed and installed to full width improvement as provided below:

(a) Shall be graded as necessary to conform to Department of
Public Works standards.

(b) Shall be of asphaltic concrete according to Department of
Public Works standards.

(c) Shall provide storm drainage to be approved by the Department
of Public Works.

(d) Shall provide sidewalk right-of-way or easements at a minimum
width as specified in TMC Chapter 11.12.

(e) Shall construct or provide L.I.D. no-protest agreements for
permanent concrete curbs, gutters, and sidewalks according to Department of Public
Works standards.

(f) Shall be dedicated to the City or subject to a binding agreement
for future dedication.

(3) All privately owned roads that will serve four or fewer houses shall
be designed and installed to full width improvement as provided below:

(a) Shall be graded as necessary to conform to Department of
Public Works standards.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 16 of 26



(b) Shall be of asphaltic concrete according to Department of
Public Works standards.

(c) Shall provide storm drainage to be approved by the Department
of Public Works.

d. Half width improvement:

(1) Streets abutting the perimeter of a subdivision or short plat of five or
more lots shall provide the full improvements on the half of the street adjacent to the site,
provided additional paving may be required to ensure safe and efficient roads exist to
serve the subdivision; provided further that there are no physical obstructions to
completing the other half of the roadway; and that there is a minimum of 20 feet of paving.

(2) If the future grade or alignment of the adjacent public street is
unknown and it is not feasible to establish the grade in a reasonable period or the
immediate improvement of the street would result in a short, isolated segment of improved
street and similar street improvements in the vicinity are unlikely to occur within six years,
the City may approve a delay of improvements. The owner(s) must agree to enter into a
binding L.I.D. no-protest agreement to further improve the street to full public street
standards in the future; however adjacent streets must still be improved to the minimum
level necessary, in the judgment of the City Engineer, to safely accommodate traffic
generated by the proposed subdivision or short plat.

(3) Streets abutting the perimeter of a short plat of four or fewer lots
shall provide L.I.D. no-protest agreements for construction of frontal improvements on the
half of the street adjacent to the site, provided that there is a minimum of 20 feet of paving.

D. Utilities.

1. Generally. All utilities designed to serve the subdivision shall be placed
underground and, if located within a sensitive-critical area, shall be designed to meet the
standards of the sensitive—critical areas overlay zone. Those utilities to be located
beneath paved surfaces shall be installed, including all service connections, as approved
by the Department of Public Works; such installation shall be completed and approved
prior to application of any surface materials. Easements may be required for the main-
tenance and operation of utilities as specified by the Public Works Department.

2. Sanitary sewers. Sanitary sewers shall be provided to each lot at no cost
to the City and designed in accordance with City standards. Septic systems may be
installed when approved by the Seattle-King County Department of Public Health and
when the existing sewer system will not be available to the lot within the life of the
preliminary approval.

3. Storm drainage. The storm drainage collection system shall meet the
requirements of the City’s stormwater ordinance standards (Ordinrance—#1755TMC
Chapter 14.28).

4. Water system. Each lot within a proposed subdivision shall be served by a
water distribution system designed and installed in accordance with City standards.
Locations of fire hydrants and flow rates shall be in accordance with City standards and
the Uniform Fire Code.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 17 of 26

23



24

E. Blocks.

1. Length. Residential blocks should not be less than 300 feet nor more than
1,000 feet in length, (600 - 2,000 feet for commercial and industrial areas). Where
circumstances warrant for the purpose of implementing the Comprehensive Plan, the
Planning Commission may require one or more public pathways of not less than six feet
nor more than 15 feet in width, either by dedication or easement, to extend entirely across
the width of the block to connect public rights-of-way.

2. Width. Blocks shall be wide enough to allow two tiers of lots, except where
abutting a major street or prevented by topographical conditions or size of the property,
in which case the GCity-Couneil-Director may approve a single tier.

3. Pedestrian considerations. Blocks, roads and pedestrian improvements
shall be designed to provide a safe and convenient pedestrian network.

F. Lots.

1. Arrangement. Insofar as practical, side lot lines shall be at right angles to
street lines or radial to curved street lines. Each lot must have access to a public street
that is approved at the time of plat review; however, rather than designing flag lots, access
shall be accomplished with common drive easements.

2. Lotdesign. The lot area, width, shape, and orientation shall be appropriate
for the location of the subdivision, for the type of development and land use contemplated,
and shall conform with the requirements of the zoning ordinance.

3. Corner lots. Corner lots may be required to be platted with additional width
to allow for the additional side yard requirements.

G. Landscaping.

1. Each lot within a new subdivision or short plat of five lots or greater shall be
landscaped with at least one tree in the front yard to create a uniform streetscape.

2. Landscaping shall conform with Public Work standards.

H. Street Signs. The subdivider shall be responsible for the initial cost of any street
name or number signs, or street markings, including installation thereof, that Public Works
finds necessary for the subdivision.

I. Lighting. Street lighting shall conform to the Department of Public Works
standards unless the City—Ceouneil-Public Works Director requires alternative fixtures,
poles, and/or spacing to contribute to an overall design concept of the subdivision.

J. Monumentation.

1. Imprinted monument. All monuments set in subdivisions shall be at least
1/2 inch x 24-inch steel bar or rod, or equivalent, with durable cap imprinted with the
license number of the land surveyor setting the monument.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 18 of 26



2. Centerline monument. After paving, except as provided in TMC Section
17.20.030.J.5, monuments shall be driven flush with the finished road surface at the
following intersections:

a. Centerline intersections.

b. Points of intersection of curves if placement falls within the paved area;
otherwise, at the beginnings and endings of curves.

c. Intersections of the plat boundaries and street center lines.

3. Property line monumentation. All front corners, rear corners, and
beginnings and endings of curbs shall be set with monuments, except as provided in TMC
Section 17.20.030.J.5. In cases where street curbs are concentric and/or parallel with
front right-of-way lines, front property line monumentation may be provided by brass
screws or concrete nails at the intersections of curb lines and the projections of side
property lines. If curb monumentation is used, it shall be noted on the plat, and also that
such monumentation is good for projection of line only and not for distance.

4. Post-monumentation. All monuments for exterior boundaries of the
subdivision shall be set and referenced on the plat prior to plat recording. Interior
monuments need not be set prior to recording if the developer certifies that the interior
monuments shall be set within 90 days of final subdivision construction inspection by the
Department of Public Works, and if the developer guarantees such interior
monumentation.

5. Post-monumentation bonds. In lieu of setting interior monuments prior to
final plat recording as provided in TMC Section 17.20.030.J.3, the Public Works Director
may accept a bond in an amount and with surety and conditions satisfactory to the
Director, or other secure method as the Public Works Director may require, providing for
and securing the actual setting of the interior monuments.

Section 8. Ordinance Nos. 2124 §3 (part) and 1833 §1 (part), as codified at TMC
Section 17.24.010, are hereby amended to read as follows:

17.24.010 Plans and permits required for public improvements

A. Approval of a preliminary plat, short plat, binding site improvement plan or
boundary line adjustment shall constitute approval for the applicant to develop
construction plans and specifications, for all facilities and improvements, in substantial
conformance to the preliminary approval, design standards, and any special conditions
required by the Short Subdivision Committee, Hearing Examiner, or Planning
Commission—er—City—Couneil; to obtain permits and complete installation for said
improvements; and to prepare a final plat, plans, surveys and other documents for
recording.

B. Priorto installing improvements, the developer shall apply for all required permits
for those improvements. The applications shall include development plans as specified
on the application form. [Note: See TMC Chapters 11.08 and 11.12 for additional
guidance on standards and permit requirements for improvements in the public right-of-

way.]

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 19 of 26

25



26

Section 9. Ordinance Nos. 2124 §3 (part) and 1833 §1 (part), as codified at TMC
Section 17.24.030, are hereby amended to read as follows:

17.24.030 Improvement agreements and financial guarantees

A. Required improvements. Before any final subdivision, short plat, binding site
improvement plan or boundary line adjustment is finally approved, the subdivider shall
install required improvements and replace or repair any such improvements which are
damaged in the development of the subdivision. In lieu of the completion of the actual
construction of all required improvements (public and private) and prior to the approval of
a final plat, the Public Works Director may accept a bond in an amount and with surety
and conditions satisfactory to the Director, or other secure method, providing for and
securing to the City the actual construction and installation of all required improvements.
This is in addition to the requirements of TMC Chapter 11.08 requiring a performance
bond for all work being done in the public right-of-way. If the Public Works Director
accepts a bond for the completion of the work, the subdivider shall execute and file with
the City an agreement guaranteeing completion of such improvements together with any
needed replacement or repair. The agreement shall:

1. Specify the period of time within which all work required shall be completed.
The time for completion shall not exceed one year from the date of final approval of the
subdivision. The agreement may provide for reasonable extensions of time for comple-
tion of work. Extensions must be requested, approved by the Public Works Director, and
properly secured in advance of the required initial completion date.

2. Require notice by the subdivider to the Public Works Director promptly upon
completion of all required improvements.

3. Provide for notice of approval or disapproval by the Public Works Director of
the improvement within a reasonable time after receiving notice of completion.

4. Require financial security to be provided by the subdivider pursuant to TMC
Section 17.24.030.C.

5. Provide that, if the subdivider fails to complete all required work within the
period specified, the City may take steps to demand performance of the developer’s
obligation within a reasonable time not to exceed 90 days from the date of demand.

6. Provide that, if the required improvements are not completed within that time,
the City may take action to require the subdivider to forfeit the financial security.

7. Provide that the City shall be entitled to recover all costs of such action
including reasonable attorney’s fees.

8. Provide that, following recovery of the proceeds of the financial security,
those proceeds shall be used to complete the required improvements and pay the costs
incurred.

9. Provide that, should the proceeds of the financial security be insufficient for
completion of the work and payment of the costs, the City shall be entitled to recover the
deficiency from the subdivider.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 20 of 26



B. Maintenance agreement. Regardless of whether all required improvements are
completed prior to final approval of any subdivision of land, as a condition of such
approval the subdivider shall execute an agreement to assure successful operation of
said improvements. [Note: See TMC Section 11.08.110 for details.] The agreement
shall:

1. Require the subdivider to post a bond or other financial security to secure
successful operation of all required improvements and full performance of the developer’s
maintenance obligation. Such financial security shall be effective for a two-year period
following approval of installation of all required improvements.

2. Require the subdivider to perform maintenance functions on drainage
improvements for a period of time not to exceed two years from approval of their com-
pletion or final plat approval, whichever is later. Such maintenance functions shall be
specified by the Public Works Director, and shall be reasonably related to the burdens
that the subdivision will impose on drainage facilities during the time maintenance is
required. The City Ceuneil-may agree to accept and perform maintenance of the
improvements, in which case the subdivider's obligation to perform maintenance
functions shall terminate.

3. Not relieve the subdivider of liability for the defective condition of any
required improvements discovered following the effective term of the security given.

4. Provide a waiver by the subdivider of all claims for damages against any
governmental authority, which may occur to the adjacent land as a result of construction,
drainage, and maintenance of the streets and other improvements.

C. Performance bond. To assure full performance of the agreements required
herein, the subdivider shall provide one or more of the following in a form approved by
the City Attorney:

1. Asurety bond executed by a surety company authorized to transact business
in the State of Washington.

2. An irrevocable letter of credit from a financial institution stating that the
money is held for the purpose of development of the stated project.

3. An assignment of account with a financial institution which holds the money
in an account until such time the City signs a written release. The assignment of account
will allow the City to withdraw the funds in the event the provisions of the agreement are
not met.

4. A cash deposit made with the City of Tukwila.

D. Amount of Financial Security. The financial security provided shall be 150%
of the estimated cost of the improvements to be completed and all related engineering
and incidental expenses, final survey monumentation and preparation of reproducible
Mylar or electronic records in a format approved by Public Works and meeting current
Public Works drawing standards of the “as-built” improvements. The subdivider shall
provide an estimate of these costs for acceptance by the Public Works Director.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 21 of 26

27



28

E. Defective Work. The acceptance of improvements by the City shall not prevent
the City from making a claim against the _develepersubdivider for any defective work if
such is discovered within two years after the date of completion of the work.

Section 10. Ordinance Nos. 2627 §32, 2442 §6, 2368 §70, 2294 §1, 2251 §75, 2235
§19, 2135 §19 and 2119 §1, as codified at TMC Section 18.104.010, are hereby amended
to read as follows

18.104.010 Classification of Project Permit Applications

Project permit decisions are classified into five types, based on the degree of
discretion associated with each decision, as set forth in this section. Procedures for the
five different types are distinguished according to who makes the decision, whether public
notice is required, whether a public meeting and/or a public hearing is required before a
decision is made, and whether administrative appeals are provided.

1. TYPE 1 DECISIONS are made by City administrators who have technical
expertise, as designated by ordinance. Type 1 decisions may be appealed to the Hearing
Examiner who will hold a closed record appeal hearing based on the information
presented to the City administrator who made the decision. Public notice is not required
for Type 1 decisions or for the appeals of those decisions.

TYPE 1 DECISIONS

TYPE OF PERMIT DECISION MAKER
Administrative Variance for Noise — 30 days or less Community Development Director
(TMC Section 8.22.120)
Any land use permit or approval issued by the City, unless specifically As specified by ordinance
categorized as a Type 2, 3, 4, or 5 decision by this chapter
Boundary Line Adjustment, including Lot Consolidation Community Development Director
(TMC Chapter 17.08)
Minor Modification of a Boundary Line Adjustment or Lot Community Development Director

Consolidation Preliminary Approval
(TMC Section 17.08.030)

Development Permit Building Official

Minor modification to design review approval Community Development Director
(TMC Section 18.60.030)

Minor Modification to PRD Community Development Director
(TMC Section 18.46.130)

Tree Permit Community Development Director
(TMC Chapter 18.54)

Wireless Communication Facility, Minor Community Development Director
(TMC Chapter 18.58)

2. TYPE 2 DECISIONS are decisions that are initially made by the Director or,
in certain cases, other City administrators or committees, but which are subject to an open
record appeal to the Hearing Examiner, Board of Architectural Review, or, in the case of
shoreline permits, an appeal to the State Shorelines Hearings Board pursuant to RCW
90.58.

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 22 of 26



TYPE 2 DECISIONS

INITIAL APPEAL BODY
DECISION (open record
TYPE OF PERMIT MAKER appeal)
Administrative Design Review Community Board of
(TMC Section 18.60.030) Development Architectura
Director | Review
Administrative Planned Residential Short Hearing
Development Plat Committee Examiner
(TMC Section 18.46.110)
Administrative Variance for Noise — Community Hearing
31-60 days Development Examiner
(TMC Section 8.22.120) Director
Binding Site Improvement Plan Short Hearing
(TMC Chapter 17.16) Plat Committee Examiner
Cargo Container Placement Community Hearing
(TMC Section 18.50.060) Development Examiner
Director
Code Interpretation Community Hearing
(TMC Section 18.90.010) Development Examiner
Director
Exception from Single-Family Design Community Hearing
Standard Development Examiner
(TMC Section 18.50.050) Director
Modification to Development Standards Community Hearing
(TMC Section 18.41.100) Development Examiner
Director
Parking standard for use not specified Community Hearing
(TMC Section 18.56.100), Development Examiner
and modifications to certain parking Director
standards
(TMC Sections 18.56.065, .070, .120)
Sensitive-Critical Areas (except Community Hearing
Reasonable Use Exception) Development Examiner
(TMC Chapter 18.45) Director
Shoreline Substantial Development Permit Community State
(TMC Chapter 18.44) Development Shorelines
Director Hearings
Board
Shoreline Tree Permit Community Hearing
Development Examiner
Director
Short Plat Short Plat Hearing
(TMC Chapter 17.12) Committee Examiner
Minor Modification of a Short Plat Community Hearing
Preliminary Approval Development Examiner
(TMC Section 17.12.020) Director
Minor Modification of a Subdivision Community Hearing
Preliminary Plat Development Examiner
(TMC Section 17.14.020) Director
Subdivision — Final Plat Community Hearing
(TMC Section 17.14.030) Development Examiner
Director

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20

JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton

Page 23 of 26

29



Modification to TUC Corridor Standards Community Hearing

(TMC Section 18.28.110.C) Development Examiner
Director

Modification to TUC Open Space Standards Community Hearing

(TMC Section 18.28.250.D.4.d) Development Examiner
Director

Transit Reduction to Parking Requirements Community Hearing

(TMC Section 18.28.260.B.5.b) Development Examiner
Director

Wireless Communication Facility, Minor Community Hearing

(TMC Chapter 18.58) Development Examiner
Director

3. TYPE 3 DECISIONS are quasi-judicial decisions made by the Hearing
Examiner following an open record hearing. Type 3 decisions may be appealed only to
Superior Court, except for shoreline variances and shoreline conditional uses that may
be appealed to the State Shorelines Hearings Board pursuant to RCW 90.58.

TYPE 3 DECISIONS

INITIAL DECISION APPEAL BODY
TYPE OF PERMIT MAKER (closed record appeal)

Resolve uncertain zone district boundary Hearing Examiner Superior Court
Variance (zoning, shoreline, sidewalk, Hearing Examiner Superior Court
land alteration, sign)
TSO Special Permission Use Hearing Examiner Superior Court
(TMC Section 18.41.060)
Conditional Use Permit Hearing Examiner Superior Court
Modifications to Certain Parking Hearing Examiner Superior Court
Standards
(TMC Chapter 18.56)
Reasonable Use Exceptions under Hearing Examiner Superior Court
Critical Areas Ordinance
(TMC Section 18.45.180)
Variance for Noise in excess of 60 days Hearing Examiner Superior Court
(TMC Section 8.22.120)
Variance from Parking Standards over Hearing Examiner Superior Court
10%
(TMC Section 18.56.140)
Subdivision — Preliminary Plat with no Hearing Examiner Superior Court
associated Design Review application
(TMC Section 17.14.020)
Subdivision Phasing Plan Hearing Examiner Superior Court
(TMC Section 17.14.040)
Wireless Communication Facility, Major Hearing Examiner Superior Court
or Waiver Request
(TMC Chapter 18.58)
Shoreline Conditional Use Permit Hearing Examiner State Shorelines Hearings Board

4. TYPE 4 DECISIONS are quasi-judicial decisions made by the Board of
Architectural Review or the Planning Commission, following an open record hearing.
Type 4 decisions may be appealed to the Hearing Examiner based on the record
established by the Board of Architectural Review or Planning Commission, except

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton

Page 24 of 26



Shoreline Conditional Use Permits, that are appealable to the State Shorelines Hearings
Board pursuant to RCW 90.58.

TYPE 4 DECISIONS
INITIAL APPEAL BODY
DECISION (closed record
TYPE OF PERMIT MAKER appeal)
Public Hearing Design Board of Hearing
Review Architectural Examiner
(TMC Chapter 18.60) Review
Subdivision — Preliminary Planning Hearing
Plat with an associated Commission Examiner

Design Review application
(TMC Section 17.14.020)

Subdivision Phasing Plan Planning Hearing

(for a subdivision with an Commission Examiner

associated Design

Review)

(TMC Section 17.14.040)

Shoreline Conditional Use Planning State

Permit Commission Shorelines

(TMC Section 18.44.050) Hearings
Board

5. TYPE 5 DECISIONS are quasi-judicial decisions made by the Hearing
Examiner or City Council following an open record hearing. Type 5 decisions may be
appealed only to Superior Court.

TYPE 5 DECISIONS
INITIAL APPEAL BODY
DECISION (closed record
TYPE OF PERMIT MAKER appeal)
Planned Residential City Council Superior Court
Development (PRD),
including Major
Modifications
(TMC Chapter 18.46)
Site specific rezone along City Council Superior Court

with an accompanying
Comprehensive Plan map
change

(TMC Chapter 18.84)
Sensitive-Critical Area City Council Superior Court
Master Plan Overlay
(TMC Section 18.45.160)
Shoreline Environment City Council Superior Court
Re-designation (Shoreline
Master Program)

S Einal P S G . SumariorC
Unclassified Use City Council Superior Court
(TMC Chapter 18.66)

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 25 of 26



Section 11. Repealer. Ordinance No. 2499 is hereby repealed.

Section 12. Corrections by City Clerk or Code Reviser Authorized. Upon
approval of the City Attorney, the City Clerk and the code reviser are authorized to make
necessary corrections to this ordinance, including the correction of clerical errors;
references to other local, state or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or ordinance
numbering and section/subsection numbering.

Section 13. Severability. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause
or phrase of this ordinance or its application to any person or situation should be held to
be invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction, such
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the
remaining portions of this ordinance or its application to any other person or situation.

Section 14. Effective Date. This ordinance or a summary thereof shall be published
in the official newspaper of the City, and shall take effect and be in full force five days
after passage and publication as provided by law.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TUKWILA, WASHINGTON, at

a Regular Meeting thereof this day of , 2021.
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:
Christy O'Flaherty, MMC, City Clerk Allan Ekberg, Mayor
APPROVED AS TO FORM BY: Filed with the City Clerk:
Passed by the City Council:
Published:

Effective Date:
Ordinance Number:

Office of the City Attorney

CC:\Legislative Development\Subdivision amendments strike-thru 12-1-20
JR:bjs  Review and analysis by Barbara Saxton Page 26 of 26



City of Tukwila

PLANNING COMMISSION (PC)
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 12, 2020

Date: November 12, 2020

Time: 6:30 PM - 10:45 PM

Location: Virtual Meeting - Microsoft Teams

Present: Chair Heidi Watters; Vice-Chair Louise Strander; Commissioners Dennis Martinez, Sharon

Mann, Karen Simmons, Dixie Stark, and Andrea Reay

Staff: Deputy Director Minnie Dhaliwal; Senior Planner Jaimie Reavis; Assistant Planner
Meredith Sampson; Business Relations Manager Brandon Miles and Planning
Commission Secretary Wynetta Bivens

Adopt

Minutes: Commissioner Strander moved to adopt the November 5, 2020 minutes. Commissioner

Martinez seconded the motion. Motion passed. Commissioners Mann, Stark and Reay were
absent on 11/5/20 and abstained from voting.

CASE NUMBER: L20-0106

PURPOSE: Consider updates to subdivision procedures in Tukwila Municipal Code Title 17 (Subdivisions and
Plats) and Title 18 (Zoning).

LOCATION: City-wide.

Jaimie Reavis, Senior Planner, Department of Community Development (DCD) gave the presentation for staff. The
intent of the public hearing was to consider amendment to the subdivision regulation within the Tukwila Municipal
Code and Title 17 for subdivisions and plats and Title 18 for zoning. Ms. Reavis provided background information
on the subdivision process; explanation of why the code amendments are being proposed; gave an overview of the
proposed changes and options; went over the approval process; as well as the proposed amendments and staff’s
recommendations. She also answered several clarifying questions.

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS / STAFF’S RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Modification of a preliminary approval

This process is not currently in the code, the process would be added to modify a preliminary approval of any type
of subdivision, after the preliminary approval and before final approval.

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION: The DCD Director makes the determination whether the modification is a minor
or major modification and can require conditions to ensure conformance with the criteria.

NOTED: The DCD Director will use proposed criteria in determining if the modification is minor. If the
modification is determined to be major the applicant needs to apply for a new application.

2. Final plat approval
STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION: The decision is made by the DCD Director.
3. Phasing of final approval

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION: The phasing plan be submitted and reviewed by the Hearing Examiner at the

Attachment B 33


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


Page 2 of 4
11/12/20
PC Minutes

34

time of preliminary approval; after preliminary approval if it turns out that it is better to phase subdivisions staff is
recommending that a modification to the preliminary plat be submitted and it be reviewed by the DCD
Director.

NOTE:  Concern was expressed in having the Director review and approve phasing proposed after the
preliminary approval has already been issued. There was discussion on how phasing proposed after preliminary
approval should go back to the Hearing Examiner (or the Planning Commission if there was an associated design
review).

4. Expiration and Extensions (language clean-up for expiration and phasing extensions)

NOTE: Currently the existing code requires the first phase must be recorded within five years. Concern was
expressed that if a subdivision is phased and does not meet the deadline another application needs to be submitted
and the applicant must start over.

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION: The DCD Director may extend a preliminary plat for a project that has received
phasing approval for up to three additional years, for a total maximum of eight years from the date of preliminary
approval.

NOTE: There was extensive discussion on this proposed amendment, the PC expressed concern that the
recommended extension was not long enough. After multiple suggested amendments to staff’s recommendation, the
PC added several more recommendation options in addition to staff’s recommendations.

PUBLIC TESTIMONY

Mike Pruett, for Segale Properties said that it is important for the PC to understand the whole pre-plat final plat
process and that approximately 90% of the effort is in the pre-plat. He explained that it involves preparation of all
sorts of different plans and infrastructure, not just the pre-plat plans. He said it is a time consuming and expensive
process, and all subdivisions are not created equal. He said it will probably take 15 to 20 years to develop the 20
lots, and he would like the pre-plat to stay alive as long as possible. He said all the pre-plats will be built out under
the current regulations, and all the public infrastructure that could change over time is already built. He also
commented on the language and process for minor modifications. He said they are in favor of flexibility for the life
of the pre-plat.

Nicole DeLeon, Attorney, Cairncross and Hempleman, representing Segale Properties,

went over the highlights of the comment letter submitted on behalf of Segale Properties. She stated what is driving
Segale’s interest in this amendment is the amount of infrastructure, and work that goes in during the preliminary plat
phase. She reiterated Mr. Pruett’s comment that 90% of the effort, such as planning, work, and infrastructure goes in
during the preliminary plat phase. She said if the preliminary plat expires, you have done 90% of the work,
expense, time, and investment and suddenly you are just out of luck. She said they are requesting flexibility, and it is
critical to be granted flexibility for an extension up to 12 years on the extension approval process. She said if the
extension is granted that there are certain guards that would prevent any concerns on the city’s part in granting the
extension. She commented on the discussion pertaining to the department review process, and said she researched
and found code TMC18.104.180, which states the review process is required by all departments. They are proposing
their project is revised to a minor modification, as a Type 1 decision. She provided clarification on why they are
focused on a 10-lot standard. She said that state law does allow for approval of a longer extension. In addition to the
other revisions requested, she suggested that a provision for fewer lots be included to eliminate any ambiguity.

There was no additional public testimony.
Following are some of the clarifying questions raised by the PC.

Commissioner Mann asked Mr. Pruett considering he said that most of the improvements are complete, what are
their concerns with what staff is proposing? Mr. Pruett said through the initial pre-plats, he said the risk associated
with providing a longer timeframe is small because the improvements are done. However, the pre-plat underlines all
their future development plans that will expire over and over while they are building out the project over 15 to 20
years.

Attachment B


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


Page 3 of 4
11/12/20
PC Minutes

Commissioner Martinez asked Ms. DeLeon if they were okay with staff’s language pertaining to the preliminary
plat phasing approval? Ms. DeLeon said it captures the concept that they are comfortable with.

Commissioner Stark asked staff how they came up with the recommended extension period of 3 years, considering
the comment letter mentions a 12-year period. Staff said that the recommendation was based on review of other
cities’ codes. Commissioner Stark asked whether staff had found a city that offers an extension greater than 3-years,
staff noted that one example was found where a total of 11 years was allowed, with extensions provided in
increments of two years.

Commissioner Simmons asked how many of their current sub-plats are subject to expire? Mr. Pruett responded
one.

Commissioner Reay asked if a total of seven-years extension would be sufficient, or would additional years be
more prudent? Mr. Pruett said they would need more years, and they would need to re-apply at least once, or
multiple times before the project is complete. He said the longer timeframe the City approves the better.

Commissioner Watters asked staff to clarify where the Tukwila South project is in the subdivision process. Staff
noted that it is not clear why Tukwila South has been set up as such a large subdivision with future development
tracts that will also need to be subdivided. Given that most of the infrastructure has been constructed, Commissioner
Watters asked what would expire if the preliminary plat is not extended? She noted a balance between a developer
having to continually resubmit new applications for preliminary plat approval, and having development be subject to
things like environmental regulations that get updated, since we want to use best available science and fulfill the
City Council’s vision for the City. Mr. Pruett said they need additional flexibility for the length of time a
preliminary plat can stay alive.

Commissioner Stander asked Ms. DeLeon to provide clarification on the language in the comment letter regarding
item #6 on page 2. Ms. DeLeon said they are asking for a revision to the modification criteria to allow a proposal to
modify conditions of the original preliminary plat approval to qualify as a minor modification. Commissioner
Strander asked clarifying questions about the proposed 12-year timeframe, and whether it provides the flexibility for
the decision-maker to determine how much time the extension would be provided for, up to 12 years. Ms. DeLeon
said that the Director under the various criteria could reduce the amount of time of the extension to be less than the
maximum allowable.

Commissioner Martinez inquired whether the City Attorney reviewed the comment letter. Staff confirmed the City
Attorney reviewed the letter and staff’s recommendations and agreed with staff’s recommendations. The City
Attorney felt they met the balance of providing flexibility without the vesting period being a concern. Therefore,
the City Attorney did not feel any additional changes to staff’s recommendations were necessary.

DELIBERATIONS

Request: Commissioner Stander requested to add the proposed revision to the minor modification #1 language as
listed in the comment letter. Note: (motion #1, first bullet)

Request: Commissioner Stander requested to add the proposed revision to the minor modification #6 language, as
listed in the comment letter. Note: (motion #1, second bullet)

Request: Commissioner Mann requested that a statement is included under minor modifications that all
departments (Planning, Building, PW, and Fire) must be part of the review process. Note: (motion #1, third bullet)

Commissioner Watters said the proposed amendments are a good addition, and she agrees with the City Attorney
and staff, as recommended.

MOTIONS
1. Modification of a preliminary approval
Commissioner Mann moved to approve and forward to the City Council with the additional modification language

in bullets 1-3.
Attachment B 35


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


Page 4 of 4
11/12/20
PC Minutes

36

¢ Minor modifications do not increase the number of lots in the subdivision beyond the number previously
approved or which maintain the number of lots or decrease the number of lots in the subdivision below the
number previously approved’.

e Minor modifications are consistent with the conditions of the preliminary approval, provided that a minor
modification may revise conditions of the preliminary approval so long as the revisions are consistent with the
minor modification limitations set by TMC 17.14.020.E.1-5.

o All departments must be part of the minor modification review process (Planning, Building, PW, and Fire).

Commissioner Stark seconded the motion. Motion Passed. Commissioners Watters and Simmons opposed.

2. Final plat approval

Commissioner Mann moved to approve and forward to the City Council as recommended by staff, Option A.
Commissioner Watters seconded the motion. Motion passed. Commissioner Martinez opposed.

3. Phasing of final approval

Commissioner Watters moved to approve and forward to the City Council as recommended by staff.
Commissioner Simmons seconded the motion. Motion failed. Commissioners Martinez, Strander, Mann, and Stark
opposed.

Commissioner Mann moved to approve and forward to the City Council, Option B as listed in the staff report, for
approval by Hearing Examiner or Planning Commission. Commissioner Martinez seconded the motion.
Motion passed. Commissioners Watters, Simmons, and Reay opposed.

Chair Watters called for a two-minute recess.
4. Expiration and extensions (language clean-up for expiration and phasing extensions)

The PC asked staff to type and show on the screen their proposed language of several revised options of
recommendations in addition to staff’s recommendations, and then they voted on the options.

Commissioner Strander moved to approve and forward to the City Council the following recommendation as
amended, The DCD Director may extend a preliminary plat that has up to 2 phases

three additional years beyond the period provided in TMC 17.14.050, A. For plats that have more than 2 phases
approved as part of the preliminary plat the DCD Director may extend a preliminary plat for a total of 9 years with
the first extension of 3 years and two subsequent extensions of three years each.

In no case shall the total time between the date of preliminary approval and the date of recording of the final
phase of a phased development exceed 14 years. Commissioner Stark seconded the motion. Motion passed.
Commissioners Simmons and Watters opposed.

The public hearing was closed.
e The briefing on the housing plan was continued to December 10™.
Adjourned: 10:45 p.m.

Submitted by: Wynetta Bivens
Planning Commission Secretary

Attachment B


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


Department of Community Development - Jack Pace, Director

STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Prepared November 3, 2020

FILE NUMBERS: L20-0106

REQUEST: Amend Title 17 and Title 18

PUBLIC HEARING: A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Seattle Times on October 29,
2020.

SEPA: This project is exempt from the State Environmental Policy Act under WAC 197-

11-800 (19), Procedural actions.
STAFF: Jaimie Reavis, Senior Planner

ATTACHMENTS: A. TMC 17.14.030, C: Criteria for Final Plat Approval and TMC 17.14.040 Phasing

ISSUE/SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ACTION

Staff is proposing changes to Title 17 and Title 18 that are intended to address approval process issues
for subdivisions identified by City staff, Segale Properties, and other applicants. Included are revising the
approval process for modifying a subdivision which has received preliminary approval (including
Boundary Line Adjustments, Lot Consolidations, Short Subdivisions, and Subdivisions), changing the
decision maker for final approval of subdivision applications which involve 10 or more lots, and
modifying the length of time for phases in a subdivision to be submitted for final subdivision approval.

BACKGROUND

Title 17 Subdivisions and Plats of the Tukwila Municipal Code (TMC) contains the regulations and criteria
for approval of subdividing land in the City of Tukwila. Title 18 of the TMC (Zoning) has additional
regulations for subdividing land, specifying the decision maker, appeal body, appeal type (open record
or closed record), and the procedures required for each type of application.

The different processes for the subdivision of land include short plats, boundary line adjustments, lot
consolidations, binding site improvement plans, and subdivisions. Except for the first issue, the focus of
this memo is on subdivisions of 10 or more lots (called plats).

1
Attachment B

City Of TUkWila Allan Ekberg, Mayor
o =

37


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


38

Subdivision Process — Current

Table 1 summarizes who the decision maker is at various stages of review for a subdivision plat,
subdivision phasing, and modification of a preliminary plat. Also included are the public notification and
public hearing processes, time limits for expiration of the Preliminary Approval, and information on
proposed changes.

The current process all applications for subdivision go through include the following workflow:
Staff review--> Preliminary Approval-->Installation of Infrastructure (utilities, access)-->Final Approval

1. Staff review: Initial review by Fire, Public Works, Planning, and Building — results in correction
letter or recommendation for Preliminary Approval.

2. Preliminary Approval: for the decision on a subdivision involving 10 or more lots - the
recommendations are referred to the Hearing Examiner or Planning Commission (when there is
an associated Design Review application). After mailed and posted public notice is provided to
tenants and property owners within 500 feet, a public hearing is held on the application prior to
a decision on approval by either the Hearing Examiner or Planning Commission.

3. Installation of infrastructure and changes to survey document: Conditions of Preliminary
Approval include required changes to the survey and easement documents (for all types of
subdivision applications), and construction of infrastructure improvements in the case of a Short
Plat, some Binding Site Improvement Plans, and Subdivision Plats.

4. Final Approval:

a. The applicant makes changes to the survey and other applicable documents in response
to the conditions of Preliminary Approval and resubmits materials for City review. If
conditions of approval are met, then Final Approval is recommended and approval
granted by the DCD Director’s signature on the survey.

b. Subdivision plats are forwarded to the City Council for a quasi-judicial public hearing and
decision.

DISCUSSION

Four main areas of revisions to Titles 17 and 18 of the TMC have been identified to improve subdivision
procedures. The options to consider are included in Table 1 below:

1. Add a process for an applicant to request modifications to Preliminary Approval of any type of
subdivision (i.e., Boundary Line Adjustment, Lot Consolidation, Binding Site Improvement Plan,
Short Plat, Subdivision). There is currently no guidance in the code and addition of a process
would add clarity for applicants and staff.

2. Revise the process for Final Approval of a subdivision with 10 or more lots (called a Final Plat) to
allow Director approval. Currently, the final plat is approved by the City Council as a quasi-
judicial decision. State law was changed in 2017 to allow the City Council to delegate the review
and decision of a Final Plat to “an established planning commission or agency, or to such other
administrative personnel in accordance with state law or local charter.” Other jurisdictions have
adopted ordinances which allow Final Plat approval by the Planning Director, Hearing Examiner,
or Planning Commission.

2 Attachment B


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


Revise the phasing approval process to accommodate phasing during and after the Preliminary
Plat Approval stage.

Revise the extension approval process and language in TMC 17.14.050 to allow the DCD Director
to approve extensions, and allow for the expiration of a preliminary approval for a phased
subdivision to be extended for longer than the existing one-year time period. Housekeeping
cleanup of the existing language is also proposed.

Attachment B
3
39


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


40

Attachment B


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


g uawyoeny

g

[12uno) AlD = g adA| ‘yyg/uoissiwwo) Suluueld=p adAL ‘usuiwex]y uleay =g adA ] {(MaIAY |BIN1I91IYDUIY JO pieog Jo Jaulwex]
Sulieay ayi o1 |eadde piodas uado si |eadde) 4o30a.1q =g 9dA] ‘(Joulwex3] Sulieay ol [eadde pio2a4-paso|d si [eadde ‘suoisipap T adA| 4oy pasinbau jou a2110u d1jgnd) Joroauig =T 9dA L,

uolsIAIpgns

9y} Joj uonesydde
M3U e Jo

|e131wgns salinbay

(4ofen)

1e|d Adeulwijaid
/lenoaddy
Aseuiwiaad

4O UOIIEIIPOIN

(4ouin)
(rOT1'8T 1e|d Adeutwi|aid
DIALL) suoisidap ¢ adA) /lenoaddy
‘uoljeJidxa jenrosdde Aseujwijaad 10J 92130U paJinbal uad (z 2dAl) Aleujwiaud
[eui8lio suielay :pasodold V/N Vv/N : Jo123.1q JO UoIIBIIIPOIN
(¢ 2dAL) "(mojaq 93s) 1e|d (v adAl)
'sJedA ¢ 01 dn JO uoISUDIXD Aseulwi|aid ays jo uonedyipow paJinbau si
ue 319234 ued saseyd Juanbasgns e Joj uoiiedljdde ue ygnouysy "(#70T°8T JINIL) Ma1AaJ uBisap
{sieah g ulyum papJodal pamainaJ ‘[enosddy Ateujwijald suols|oap g odA] Joy | Jl uolsSiLwo)
9g 1snw aseyd 1sJ14 pasodoid 19)je paylpow Jo pasodoud j| e 92130U paJinbau uad aq duluueld e
1e|d p|nom a2130u pasodoJd HO0
Aseuiwi|aid yyum paleldosse | ‘lenosddy Aseujwijaid jo swi e (g 3dAl) ‘Bunsaw |1pUNO) (€
w1} JeaA-G ay3 ulylm papJodal | ( adAL) uoissiwwo) Suluueld/(g [1Puno) | AlD jo 9d130u jo 1ed se | adAj) Jaulwexy uolsIAIpgns
9q Ishw saseyd ||y :8unsix3 9dA]) Joulwexj SuliesH e A auop S| 130U 3ullsix3y SulleaH e e Jo 3uiseyd
"ME|
93e1s Aq paJinbau (y 2dAl)
j0u 93e)s |eaosdde paJinbau s
|eulyje Suiesy e M3IADJ U3ISDP
93ueyd o pasodoid ‘23e1s |enosdde Jl uoISSIwwo)
(¥ @dA]1) uoissiwwo) 3ujuue|d |eul} pue jeaosdde Suluueld e
(3sanbau Jo (g€ adA]) Jaujwex3 uluesH (g adAl) Aeujwiaud ¥o
ud13uMm uodn JsedA jeuonnippe T snid) ¥O [1PUNO) yioq Joy (¢ adAl) (107
sieaA g TBunsixg (z @dAl) 40100.1Q AuD | pIdy Suuesyoiignd e | Jsuiwexy Suluesy e | +QT) SUOISIAIPGNS
iy (x3dAL) (x3dAL)
|enoaddy Suleay os1gnd uoisaq
Ateujwioad «9dAL aweN
jeuld /uonesynon |enoaddy
uoisaQg uonedddy
d1|gnd pa4inbay Areujwipad
— uoneadxy |enoaddy jeul4 papuswwoday uoIsIAIpgns

$955320.d Sunsix3y

(anjq u1 pa1y3ijysiy) seSuey) papuswwoddy jo Atewwns T ajqeL

14

41


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


42



1. Addition of a Process to allow a Modification of Preliminary Approval/Preliminary Plat

The Department of Community Development has received requests by subdivision applicants to modify an application in
between the Preliminary Approval and Final Approval stages. This process is not currently addressed in the code,
requiring an applicant to withdraw an existing application and submit a new one to obtain Preliminary Approval for their
revised plan. Other cities have adopted a process under which changes can be made to an existing Preliminary Approval
before the application for Final Approval is submitted.

Many other cities have adopted an application process which involves the Director deciding as to whether the request
for a modification to a Preliminary Approval constitutes a “minor” or “major” modification. If the modification is deemed
to be Minor by the Director, then the modification can be approved administratively by the Director, and additional
conditions that must be addressed prior to Final Approval can be added. If the modification is deemed to be “Major”,
then a new application for Preliminary Approval must be submitted and the previous application is required to be
withdrawn. A minor modification does not change the vesting or expiration date associated with a Preliminary Approval
decision.

Staff Recommendation: Staff’s recommendation is to create a new application process for a minor and major
modification, according to the following processes:

e Minor modifications proposed by an applicant after Preliminary Approval may be approved by the DCD Director as
an administrative Type 2 decision. The DCD Director may include conditions as part of an approval of a minor
modification to ensure conformance with the criteria below.

Minor modifications are those which:

(1) do notincrease the number of lots in the subdivision beyond the number previously approved;

(2) do not decrease the aggregate area of open space, or the design or location of stormwater systems or
roadways in the subdivision by ten percent (10%) or more;

(3) may realign internal roadways and lot lines, but do not relocate any roadway access point to an exterior
street from the plat;

(4) do no alter the exterior boundaries of the subdivision;

(5) which are consistent with applicable development standards and will not cause the subdivision to violate any
applicable City policy or regulation;

(6) are consistent with the conditions of the preliminary approval.

e Major modifications are those which, as determined by the DCD Director, are not minor modifications as defined in
this code, and either add property or lots or substantially change the basic design, density, open space, or other
substantive requirement or provision. If the applicant proposes to make one or more major changes, the revised
plan(s) must be processed as a new application.

2. Final Plat Approval Process

Currently, the decision on a final plat is made by the City Council following a public hearing. The Council decision on the
final plat is quasi-judicial, meaning the City Council is required to make the decision on a project that will impact a
specific project site and applicant or property owner. As the legislative body of the City, the Council most often reviews
issues and makes decisions that apply City-wide.

The following are reasons to consider changing the Decision Maker on a Final Plat Approval:

e State law only requires a public hearing during the review of the Preliminary Plat application. Tukwila currently
complies with this requirement per TMC 18.104.010. A change in the decision maker or approval process will not
change this.

e The City of Tukwila also currently requires a public hearing at the Final Plat Approval stage of a subdivision, as
required for Type 5 decisions (as well as Type 3 and Type 4 decisions). However, as noted above, state law only

7
Attachment B 43


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


3.

requires a public hearing on a subdivision during review of the Preliminary Plat application when there is the most
opportunity to consider public comments.

State law requires Final Plat to be processed within 30 days of filing unless an extension is requested. It is difficult to
meet the deadline when a public hearing by the City Council is required for Final Plat approval. A code change to
allow administrative review by the Director of a Final Plat as a Type 2 or Type 1 decision would remove the
requirement to hold a public hearing for final plat approval, allowing for a faster and more efficient processing of
Final Plat applications.

A Final Plat is approved if it meets established criteria of approval for the preliminary plat. The Final Plat approval
process is non-discretionary, subject to the criteria in TMC 17.14.030, C (see Attachment A).

The Washington Cities Insurance Authority strongly encourages councils to remove themselves as much as possible
from having to make quasi-judicial decisions.

The City Council is the legislative body of the City of Tukwila. Most of the items reviewed by the City Council are
legislative in nature, involving setting City-wide policies. The decision on a final plat is quasi-judicial, meaning the
Council is required to make the decision on a project that will impact a specific project site and applicant or property
owner. This is different from a legislative process, as Councilmembers are not allowed to discuss the matter with
community members beforehand (ex parte communication).

Proposed options:
a. Administrative approval by the DCD Director.

b. Approvalissued by the Hearing Examiner or Planning Commission.

Staff Recommendation: Option a. Administrative approval by the DCD Director.

Phasing of Final Approval

Phasing of a plat is currently approved by the City Council during the Final Plat approval, according to the criteria of TMC
17.14.040 (see Attachment A).

44

Staff Recommendation: At the time of Preliminary Approval, review and approval of project phasing is done by the
Hearing Examiner (Type 3)/Planning Commission (Type 4). If phasing is proposed after Preliminary Approval, or if a
modification to the phasing is proposed, then an application for a modification to the Preliminary Approval shall be
submitted for review by the DCD Director.

Subdivision Preliminary Plat Expiration

Currently, a subdivision preliminary plat and all associated phases must be recorded within five years of the date of
preliminary plat approval. Per TMC 17.14.050, B, “the hearing body of the preliminary approval may approve one
extension not to exceed one year.” Phased subdivisions are often done on larger plats to allow the developer to
sequentially receive final approval and begin selling or building on lots in one area of a plat while still completing
infrastructure installation in other specified phases.

The length of time a preliminary plat approval is in effect is significant because a preliminary plat vests the developer
with the right to both divide the property and to develop it in the manner disclosed in the application in accordance
with the land use and zoning laws in effect on the date of submittal. As land use and zoning laws are adopted, it is
the City’s intent to have new development consistent with current laws. It is also important for developers to have
assurance regarding the land use and zoning laws applicable to their proposals when they are planning new
developments.

8

Attachment B


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


The options below allow for the DCD Director to issue extensions on subdivision preliminary plats which have received
phasing approval.

Proposed options:
Staff is recommending the following criteria be used in review of any request for extension of a subdivision
preliminary plat approval that has received phasing approval.
1. A written request for extension is filed at least 30 days before the expiration of the preliminary plat; and
2. Unforeseen circumstances or conditions which are not the result of voluntary actions of the applicant
necessitate the extension of the preliminary plat: and
3. Conditions in the immediate vicinity of the subject property have not changed substantially since the
preliminary plat was first approved; and
4. An extension of the preliminary plat will not cause substantial detriment to existing uses in the immediate
vicinity of the subject property or to the community as a whole; and
5. The applicant has demonstrated reasonable diligence in attempting to meet the time limit imposed; and
6. The preliminary plat substantially complies with applicable City Code provisions in effect on the date that
the application for extension was made.

The two options for extending the time allowed for a Subdivision Preliminary Plat Approval that has received phasing
approval including the following:

a. The DCD Director may extend a preliminary plat for a project that has received phasing approval, but not
including the initial phase, for up to three additional years beyond the period provided in TMC 17.14.050, A. In
no case shall the total time period between the date of Preliminary Approval and the date of recording of the
final phase of a phased development exceed 8 years.

b. Final plat approval of any phase of the subdivision preliminary plat will constitute an automatic one-year
extension for the filing of the final plat for the next phases of the subdivision.

Staff Recommendation: Option A, along with adoption of the above criteria for use in review of requests for an
extension.

Additionally, staff is recommending the following language cleanup to TMC 17.14.050, A, since there are not currently
any Preliminary Plats in Tukwila which have not received Final Plat Approval:

17.14.050 Expiration
A. The preliminary plat approval for subdivision shall
expire unless a complete application for final plat meeting all

requirements of this chapter is submitted -te—the—Tulkwita-Gity-
Geuﬁeﬂ for approval w%a—seven—yeaﬁs—#em—me—daxe—ot

l&mepbefem-DeeembeFM—Zmﬁf—andwnhm fve years of the
date of preliminary plat approval if the date of preliminary plat

approval is on or after January 1, 2015-previded-that-final-plat

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission hold a public hearing on the proposed changes on November 12, 2020,
review each proposed change, and forward recommendations to the Council for a public hearing on December 14, 2020.

9
Attachment B 45


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


46

10

Attachment B


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B


TITLE 17 — SUBDIVISIONS AND PLATS

7. King County Assessor's maps which shows the
location of each property within 500 feet of the subdivision; two
sets of mailing labels for all property owners and tenants
(residents or businesses) within 500 feet of the subdivision.

8. Maintenance agreements, easements and other
documents ready for recording.

9. Signatures on the following certificates on the face
of the plat (when appropriate) from the surveyor that prepared
the plat, the King County Treasurer, Seattle-King County Health
Department, City of Tukwila Finance Director, Owner’s affidavit
and certificate of dedication as identified in TMC 17.04.060(1).

B. FINAL PLAT REVIEW PROCEDURES: Applications
for final plat approval shall be processed as Type 5 decision
subject to the provisions of TMC 18.108.050.

1. Referral to Other Departments and Agencies - The
Department of Community Development shall distribute the final
plat to all departments and agencies receiving the preliminary
plat, and to any other departments, special purpose districts and
other governmental agencies deemed necessary.

2. Departmental Approval - The Public Works
Department and other interested departments and agencies
shall review the final plat and submit to the Department of
Community Development written comments with respect to the
final plat decision criteria. If the final plat is in order, the Public
Works Director shall sign the appropriate certificates on the
mylar original.

3. Filing Final Plat -

a. Before the final plat is submitted to the City
Council, it shall be signed by the City Treasurer (Finance
Director), Director of Public Works, and the Director of the
Department of Community Development. Upon approval by the
City Council, it shall be signed by the Mayor and attested by the
City Clerk.

b. The applicant shall file the final plat with the
Department of Records and Elections. The plat will be
considered complete when a copy of the recorded documents is
returned to the Department of Community Development.

C. CRITERIA FOR FINAL PLAT APPROVAL: In

approving the final plat, the City Council shall find:

1. That the proposed final plat bears the required
certificates and statements of approval.

2. That a title insurance report furnished by the
subdivider confirms the title of the land, and the proposed
subdivision is vested in the name of the owner(s) whose
signature(s) appears on the plat certificate.

3. That the facilities and improvements required to
be provided by the subdivider have been completed or,
alternatively, that the subdivider has submitted with the
proposed final plat a performance bond or other security in
conformance with TMC 17.24.030.

4. That the plat is certified as accurate by the land
surveyor responsible for the plat.

5. That the plat is in conformance with the approved

6. That the plat meets the requirements of Chapter

58.17 RCW and other applicable state and local laws which
were in effect at the time of preliminary plat approval.

(Ord. 1833 §1(part), 1998)

17.14.040 Phasing

The subdivider may develop and record the subdivision in
phases. Any phasing proposal shall be submitted for City
Council review at the time at which a final plat for the first phase
is submitted. Approval of the phasing plan shall be based upon
making the following findings:

1. The phasing plan includes all land contained
within the approved preliminary plat, including areas where off-
site improvements are being made.

2. The sequence and timing of development is
identified on a map.

3. Each phase shall consist of a contiguous group of
lots that meets all pertinent development standards on its own.
The phase cannot rely on future phases for meeting any City
codes.

4. Each phase provides adequate circulation and
utilities. Public Works has determined that all street and other
public improvements, including but not limited to drainage and
erosion control improvements, are assured. Deferment of
improvements may be allowed pursuant to TMC Chapter 17.24.

5. All phases shall be recorded within the five-year
life of the preliminary plat, unless an extension is granted.

(Ord. 1833 §1(part), 1998)

17.14.050 Expiration
A. The preliminary plat approval for subdivision shall
expire unless a complete application for final plat meeting all
requirements of this chapter is submitted to the Tukwila City
Council for approval within seven years from the date of
preliminary plat approval if the date of preliminary plat approval
is on or before December 31, 2014, and within five years of the
date of preliminary plat approval if the date of preliminary plat
approval is on or after January 1, 2015; provided that final plat
meeting all requirements of this chapter shall be submitted to
the Tukwila City Council for approval within ten years from the
date of the preliminary plat approval if the project is not subject
to requirements adopted under Chapter 90.58 RCW and the
date of the preliminary plat approval is on or before December
31, 2007.
B. The hearing body of the preliminary approval may
approve one extension not to exceed one year.
(Ord. 2499 81, 2016; Ord. 2124 82, 2006;
Ord. 1833 §1 (part), 1998)

preliminary plat. Attachment A to PC staff report

Page 17-87

Produced by the City of Tukwila, City Clerk’s Office
Attachment B


Jaimie-R
Typewritten Text

Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment B

Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment A to PC staff report


48



CI I& CAIRNCROSS&HEMPELMANN
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
524 2nd Ave,, Suite 500 office 206.587.0700

Seattle, WA 98104 fax 206.587.2308
WWW.CAIrncross.com

November 10, 2020

VIA EMAIL

Planning Commission, City of Tukwila
c/o Jaimie Reavis

6200 Southcenter Blvd.

Tukwila, WA 98188

Email: Jaimie.Reavis@TukwilaWA.gov

Re:  Written Comments in Support of Additional Amendments to Title 17 and Title 18
Planning Commission Meeting, November 12, 2020

Dear Planning Commissioners:

On behalf of Segale Properties LLC (“Segale’), we write to support the proposed amendments to
provisions governing subdivisions in the Tukwila Municipal Code (“Code” or “TMC”). Segale agrees with
City Staff’s comments explaining the need to amend the Code to provide clarity and flexibility to the
City’s subdivision entitlement process. We also recommend a few additional revisions to City Staff’s
proposed approaches regarding plat modifications and the term of a phased plat, as detailed below.

We request the Planning Commission recommend City Staff’s proposal, with our revisions
incorporated, to City Council. Our suggested revisions to the language used in the Staff Report are
shown with new text in underline format and deleted text shown in strikethretgh format, followed by
our rationale for the revisions in italics.

Process to allow a Modification of Preliminary Approval/Preliminary Plat

e Minor modifications proposed by an applicant after Preliminary Approval may be approved
by the DCD Director as an administrative Type 2 1 decision. The DCD Director may include
conditions as part of an approval of a minor modification to ensure conformance with the
criteria below.

Minor modifications are those which:

(1) do not increase the number of lots in the subdivision beyond the number previously
approved or which maintain the number of lots, or decrease the number of lots in the
subdivision below the number previously approved;

{04104265.DOCX;3 }
nrogers@cairncross.com
direct: (206) 254-4417

Attachment C 49


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment C


50

Planning Commission
November 10, 2020
Page 2

(2) do not decrease the aggregate area of open space, or the design or location of
stormwater systems or roadways in the subdivision by ten percent (10%) or more;

(3) may realign internal roadways and lot lines, but do not relocate any roadway access
point to an exterior street from the plat;

(4) do no alter the exterior boundaries of the subdivision;

(5) which are consistent with applicable development standards and will not cause the
subdivision to violate any applicable City policy or regulation;

(6) are consistent with the conditions of the preliminary approval, provided that a minor
modification may revise conditions of the preliminary approval so long as the revisions
are consistent with the minor modification limitations set by TMC 17.14.020.E.1-5
above.

¢ Major modifications are those which, as determined by the DCD Director, are not minor
modifications as defined in this code, and either add property or lots or substantially change
the basic design, density, open space, or other substantive requirement or provision. If the
applicant proposes to make one or more major changes, the revised plan(s) must be
processed as a new application.

Rationale:

We recommend a minor modification be processed as a Type 1 decision, not a Type 2 decision.
The Type 1 categorization for a minor modification is consistent with other examples of Type I decisions
in the Code. See TMC 18.104.010. Examples of other Type I decisions are minor modifications to
design review approvals and minor modifications to a Planned Residential Development (“PRD”). Type
1 decisions are generally made by the DCD Director and subject to a closed record appeal before the
Hearing Examiner. Type 2 decisions are generally made by the DCD Director and subject to an open
record appeal before the Hearing Examiner. Examples of a Type 2 decision are administrative design
review, code interpretations, modification to development standards, and short plats. Type 2 decisions
are, therefore, clearly intended for more complex entitlement issues whereas the framework for Type 1
decisions is proportionate to the scale of a minor modification.

Next, we recommend inserting language to clarify that while a minor modification cannot
increase the number of planned lots, a minor modification may either retain or decrease the number of
lots in a plat. This flexibility is appropriate and the Subsection 5 requirement that minor modifications
be consistent with applicable development standards guards against any other concerns.

We also recommend adding language to clarify that a minor modification may revise a condition
of a preliminary plat approval, but only so long as it is consistent with the limitations set by the
preceding subsections. For example, plat conditions typically set a specific amount of open space.
Pursuant to Subsection 2, a minor modification may change the amount of open space so long as the
change is by less than 10%. Therefore, the minor modification may change the related plat condition,

{04104265.D0CX;3 }

Attachment C


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment C


Planning Commission
November 10, 2020
Page 3

but only within the stated 10% limit. We think this was City Staff’s intent, but suggest adding the
proposed language to clarify.

Subdivision Preliminary Plat Expiration
Option A

The DCD Director may extend a preliminary plat for a project that has received phasing
approval, but not including the initial phase, for up to three seven additional years beyond the
period provided in TMC 17.14.050, A. In no case shall the total time period between the date of
Preliminary Approval and the date of recording of the final phase of a phased development
exceed & 12 years.

Rationale:

We recommend revisions to allow the City to grant extensions to a preliminary plat for up to 12
vears, rather than the City Staff proposal for just eight years. Twelve years provides larger projects, like
Segale’s Tukwila South project, the needed certainty to develop large and complex projects over a
longer period of time. We support the City Staff’s recommended criteria for discretionary approval of
such an extension and note that these criteria and the City’s discretionary authority guard against
potential issues that could arise in the course of an extended term. For example, an extension may only
be granted if it “will not cause substantial detriment to existing uses in the immediate vicinity of the
subject property or to the community as a whole.” See Criterion 4. Through these criteria, the City
retains broad discretionary authority to grant, or not grant, an extension. The request to make
available the possibility of securing up to four additional years for the life of a complex phased
preliminary plat provides significant benefits to large scale projects, which is balanced by the
discretionary nature of the extension process.

Conclusion and Request for Support of these Amendments to Title 17 and 18

Segale supports this proposed update to the City’s subdivision process and urges the Planning
Commission to recommend City Staff’s proposal to City Council, together with the additional minor
revisions requested in this letter. We also appreciate the opportunity to engage on these important issues
with City Staff and we will continue to participate and make ourselves available to assist with this effort.
Thank you in advance for your time and consideration and we look forward to our continued work
together.

Very truly yours,

Nancy Bainbridge Rogers

{04104265.DOCX;3 }
Attachment C 51


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment C


52



OGDEN MURPHY WALLACE, PLLC T 206.447.7000 OMWLAW.COM
901 FIFTH AVENUE, SUITE 3500 F 206.447.0215
SEATTLE, WA 98164-2008

MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 1, 2020

TO: City of Tukwila Planning & Economic Development Committee
FROM: Assistant City Attorney Emily Miner

CC: Mayor Allan Ekberg

Community Development Director Jack Pace

RE: Updates to Subdivision Code

l. Background

City staff have proposed amendments to Title 17 of the Tukwila Municipal Code that are intended to
address approval procedures for subdivisions. City staff’'s recommendations include: (1) amending the
code to have the Community Development Director approve final plats, (2) allowing an extension period
up to three years, (3) establishing a preliminary plat modification process, and (4) revising the subdivision
phasing procedure approval. The City Attorney’s Office was asked by the Planning and Economic
Development Committee at their October 19, 2020 meeting to explain the legal justification for these
amendments.

1. Discussion

Chapter 58.17 RCW sets out the procedures related to the subdivision of land. In the purpose section, the
state legislature finds as follows: “the process by which land is divided is a matter of state concern and
should be administered in a uniform manner by cities, towns, and counties throughout the state.” RCW
58.17.010. In other words, the City’s subdivision process should mirror the process established by state
law as closely as possible to ensure uniformity in the subdivision of land.

The key statutory provisions at issue are RCW 58.17.100 and RCW 58.17.140 regarding the time limitations
and decisionmakers for approval of preliminary and final plats. Additionally, the statute is silent with
regards to modifications of preliminary plats and phasing of plats; however, local jurisdictions have
authority to establish processes by which a preliminary plat can be modified or phased.!

1 The State constitution allows cities to exercise all the police powers possessed by the state government so long as
local regulations do not conflict with general laws. WASH. CONST. art. XI, § 11.

Page 1 of 3

Attachment D 53


https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=58.17.100
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=58.17.140
Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment D


54

A. Extensions for Phased Subdivision Approval.

RCW 58.17.140 establishes the time limitation for approval of final plats. For all preliminary plats filed
after January 1, 2015, a final plat shall be submitted for approval within five years from the date of the
preliminary plat approval.? The statute goes to on state that nothing prohibits a city from adopting an
ordinance that allows extensions of time that may contain additional or altered conditions or
requirements. RCW 58.17.140. Accordingly, cities are free to establish their own extension periods.

The City’s current code is silent with regards to an extension period for phased subdivisions but does
permit a one-year extension for preliminary plats. TMC 17.14.050(B).

City staff’s recommendation is to amend the extension period to three years, and in no case would the
total time between the preliminary plat approval and the date of the final plat recording exceed eight
years.

The Planning Commission proposed a different recommendation. Their recommendation turns on how
many phases the applicant has proposed: if the applicant proposes two phases, the applicant could seek
a three year extension; if the applicant proposes three or more phases, the applicant could seek to a
combination of extensions not to exceed 14 years.

The additional time for the extension period recommended by Staff is reasonable, given the reasons
outlined in their staff memo; however, the City Attorney’s Office does not recommend the longer
timelines for extension proposed by the Planning Commission as they far exceed the initial approval
timelines that state law establishes. Further, such recommendation does not serve the purpose of
uniformity as set out by the State Legislature.

B. Phasing Plan Approval

As noted above, cities have discretion to establish their own phasing procedures. The City’s current code
states that phasing must be approved by City Council at the time at which a final plat for the first phase is
submitted. TMC 17.14.040. This does not account for the possibility to amend the phasing plan or to
propose a phasing plan after a preliminary plat has been approved. The City Attorney’s Office supports
the recommendation that amendments to a phasing plan already approved can be reviewed under the
proposed plat modification procedure while phasing proposed after a preliminary plat has been approved
requires a new plat application. This amendment supports the goal of streamlining and clarifying the
City’s subdivision procedures.

C. Administrative Final Plat Approval

RCW 58.17.100 permits “the legislative authorities of cities...[to]...delegate...[via ordinance]...final plat
approval to an established planning commission or agency, or to such other administrative personnel in
accordance with state law or local charter.” This change was made in 2017 when the legislature
acknowledged that by the time a preliminary plat reaches the final plat approval stage, all building and
environmental issues are resolved. As there are no outstanding issues to resolve, there is no need for
further discretionary review by a legislative body. The City’s current code states that a final plat approval

2 Per RCW 58.17.140, if a plat was submitted prior to December 31, 2014, the final approval timeline is seven
years, and if submitted prior to December 31, 2007, the approval timeline is ten years. To our knowledge, there
are no plats in Tukwila that fall into these longer exceptions.

Page 2 of 3

Attachment D


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment D


is subject to a Type 5 decision by City Council. Staff's recommendation is to revise this code requirement
so that the final plat approval is made by the Community Development Director, and the City Attorney’s
Office supports this recommendation.

D. Plat Modification Process

There are no procedures for modifications to a preliminary plat established in state law and the City’s
current code contains no plat modification procedures. However, from a practical standpoint, it is
important for the City to have procedures in place to address requests to modify a preliminary plat.
Without a process to amend a preliminary plat for minor modifications, the applicant is required to
withdraw their application and re-apply. This resubmittal process is time intensive and resource
consuming for both the applicant and the City. Establishing a process to determine what types of
modifications are permitted creates a framework for City staff to analyze whether the modification is
“minor” and can be approved administratively or is “major” and requires a new application. The City
Attorney’s Office supports the recommended change, along with the Planning Commission’s minor
revision to ensure other departments have an opportunity to review the proposed modification.

EFM:efm

Page 3 of 3

Attachment D

99


Jaimie-R
Text Box
Attachment D


56



City of Tukwila

Allan Ekberg, Mayor

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning and Economic Development Committee
FROM: Brandon Miles, Business Relations Manager

CC: Mayor Ekberg

DATE: December 1, 2020

SUBJECT:  Seattle Southside Regional Tourism Authority, Return on Investment

ISSUE
Presentation on the return of investment reported by Seattle Southside Regional Tourism
Authority (SSRTA).

BACKGROUND

At a previous City Council meeting there was interest in the return of investment reported by
SSRTA, specifically as to how it would relate as the City develops key performance indicators
for Experience Tukwila and how it was calculated. Staff requested that SSRTA provide a write
up to the City Council with information on its return on investment (see attached). Staff has not
conducted a detailed review or analysis of the information presented by SSRTA and is providing
it to the Council as presented by SSRTA.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
N/A

RECOMMENDATION
Discussion only.

ATTACHMENTS
e Estimated 2019 RTA Return on Investment (document prepared by SSRTA).

o7



58



SEATTLE MM
SOUTHSIDE 4N

Regional Tourism Authority

Estimated 2019 RTA Return on Investment

Notes regarding ROI:

o The RTA influences much more return on investment than what is calculated below, however,
some fundamental work of any marketing organization (public relations, social media, some
advertising, brand awareness, etc.) cannot be tracked and tied directly to spend without
conducting conversion studies. Issuing conversion studies for every activity would be cost
prohibitive and therefore the RTA is strategic about which studies are conducted.

e The RTA adheres to the industry standards for calculating ROl established by the national
association for DMOs, Destinations International. In addition, the RTA includes in its ROI
calculation only spending as measured at the destination level, not a national average.

e The RTA invests in multiple research firms to conduct studies on evaluating spend in Seattle
Southside. This data is compared and analyzed internally, and the most conservative results are
used in the below calculations.

ROI CALCULATION VISITOR SPEND
1) Website: 540,182 unique users' x 28% conversion = 151,251 travel party x

$1,039 trip average spend = 157,149,789

2) Group Sales: 10,774 room nights x $438 average daily spend = 4,719,012

4) Shuttle Services: 24,619 riders x $172 average = 4,234,468

S
$
3) Ad Attributed Hotel Sales: 34,223 room nights x $438 average daily spend = S 14,989,674
$
S

181,092,943

Total Estimated Visitor Spend = $181,092,943 / 2019 RTA Total Operating
Expenditures* $4,325,719 = S 41.86

1. WEBSITE
(A) 540,182 unique users x (B) 28% conversion = (C) 151,251 travel party x (D) $1,039 trip average
spend = $157,149,789 visitor spend

A. The number of unique users is derived from Google Analytics tracking of our website. This
means that 540,182 different people (differentiated by their IP Address) visited our website in
2019.

B. The 28% website conversion rate was determined by an H2R Market Research study conducted
in 2019 (see H2R Market Research, page 4). H2R surveyed people who visited our website to




determine the number that actually booked a stay in Seattle Southside which establishes this
conversion rate.

C. 28% of the unique users equals 151,251 overnight trips to Seattle Southside. From Dean Runyan
Research, the average overnight trip includes 2.1 people (aka. travel party) so we can determine
that one person visiting the website (unique user) represents a travel party (see Seattle
Southside Travel Impacts, page 5).

D. From Dean Runyan Research, the average travel party that visits Seattle Southside spends
$1,039 per trip (see Seattle Southside Travel Impacts, page 5). Dean Runyan Research analyzes
multiple data sources to determine these estimates, including WA State Dept of Revenue
lodging tax data, sales tax receipts, etc. We use the ‘trip average’ instead of the ‘daily rate’
spend because the 28% conversion rate reports that the unique user booked an overnight trip,
not simply one night in a hotel.

2. GROUP SALES
(A) 10,774 room nights x (B) $438 average daily spend = $4,719,012 visitor spend

A. Based on reports from host hotels and meeting planners, 10,774 projected rooms occurred in
2019 for events the RTA supported through lead generation or event assistance.

B. Dean Runyan Research reports that $438 is spent per day by a travel party staying overnight
(the average overnight room includes 2.1 people, aka. “travel party”, also according to Dean
Runyan Research (see Seattle Southside Travel Impacts, page 5).

3. AD ATTRIBUTED HOTEL SALES
(A) 34,223 room nights x (B) $438 average daily spend = $14,989,674 visitor spend

A. A marketing campaign conducted with digital advertising media partners in 2019 resulted in
34,223 room nights booked as a direct and trackable result of the campaign.

B. Dean Runyan Research reports that $438 is spent per day by a travel party staying overnight
(the average overnight room includes 2.1 people, aka. “travel party”, also according to Dean
Runyan Research (see Seattle Southside Travel Impacts, page 5).

4. SHUTTLE SERVICES
(A) 24,619 riders x (B) $172 average = $4,234,468 visitor spend
A. The Westfield Shuttle service provider tracks ridership and reported 24,619 riders in 2019.
B. According to the Shuttle Bus Economic Impact Study conducted through shuttle rider surveys by H2R
Research, the average rider spends $172 per trip to Westfield Southcenter (see Shuttle Bus Impact Study,
page 4).

*Actual expenses shown on Audited Statement of Activities, which includes depreciation and other reported expenses such as
compensated absences. In addition, it excludes capital expenditures but reported on Statement of Net Position

60



6102 1shbny paiannaQg

Apnjs uoisianuo) pipayy 1pNbIa 6102-8102
V14 °2PISyinos 9jjjeos

61



‘|EAJISIUI DOUBPIHUOD %66 B 1B %r9-/+

JO J04JD JO uIbiew wnwixew e 10} sapirnoid ydiym Apnis
SIY} 10} pamaiAIalul Ajpuanbasqgns aiam pue a1sqam

93} PalisIA yog syuspuodsal GEg 4o [e10} Y “adwies

‘syjuow z| 1sed ay3 Jano

WO0D'aPISYINOSI[11BSS MMM PIYSIA OYM SIOLISIA 9}1ISaM
Buowe padnpuod sem AsAIns ApNiS UOISISAUOD) BIPIIN
|exbId V1Y 9pISyInos aj1eas ay] ‘adualpny 1abie)

"eaJe ay3 BuIlSIA 3]Iym Op SIOSIA BPISYINOS

9]1189S 1BYM puB UOI}R}ISIA 91ISCIM 10} SSAIJ0W

Aj1nuapi se ||am se ‘ease ay3 03 dui 3ybiuisno ue payo0o0q
OYM SJO1ISIA 9}ISGOM JO 91eJ UOISIDAUOD By} ainseaw

0} sem Apnis uoisiaAuoD eIpa|A [exbid 6102/8102
VLY 9pISYInos 931eas ay3 jo asodind ay] *asodind

Alewwuing aAI13N>ax3

MBINIDNQO

62



Alewmwing
9AI}NDAX]

Apnis uoisianuo) eipa|A [e)bIa 6102-8L02



‘pauue|d

Asy1 ueyy eaue ay3 ul 1abuo| Aels 01 wayl papensiad a1isgam ayi

uo 9oualadxa J18Y} PIeS %G| puUe uolleullsap Jayloue JO pealsul

9PISYINOS 9|11 PalsIA A3yl ples 907 ‘1ISIA 01 pauue|d 10U pey

A3y3 sjueine}sal Jo suolldesiie USIA 0} wayl papenstad alsgam

Y} 0} HSIA I8y} paledipul (%/ 1) Jey AlieaN ‘sAem |elanss ul
wiay} paldedwi suljuo 9duaLIadxa JI9y) PaledIpul SIOUSIA 9USOIM =

1eak siyy ueyy Jaybiy syuiod

9 10 ‘%€ SEM 93}eJ UOISIDAUOD 33} 9102/S L0 Ul ‘Spiemialje eale

2yl 03 duy ybiuiano ue bujooq dn papus Ajp1ewiln a1sgam

9PISYINOS 3[31e3S By} POYISIA OYM SIO}ISIA DUSOIM JO %82 'Sl 18yl
‘%8¢ JO 91BJ UOISISAUOD B pPauJed 9}ISqaM apISYINos 9|1ess syl -

'9102/S10Z Ul dwes ayl ples oym %98 ayl yum Jed uo—aiebineu
01 Asea A1an/1eymawios si 1eyy a1isgqam jealb/poob e si aysgam
9PISYINOS 9|11e3S 33 |99} SIOYISIA 9}ISOOM () Ul § UBY) DIOIN =

"(9%25) S|eAIlSa) pue sluaAs Jo/pue (%GS) suondo buluip ‘(syd 2+
'9608) BaJE Y1 Ul Op 0} S311IAIIDE 10} BUI 00| 319M SIOYISIA 3}ISOIM
9591 JO 1SOI\ "9102/S 102 490 aseasdul uiod-1 e—ajisgam

a1 palisIA Aayl uaym eale ayy 01 duiy e ayew 0} papidap Apealje

pey SIOLISIA 31ISgaM 3PISYIN0S 311eas ay3 Jo (%) Aiuolew v

S}|NS3Y SISO S9}LID2UDL) ISIN

64


MeaganM
Highlight


Ae1s 1ybiuIdano ue %00( 10U PIP OYM SIOMHSIA SHSODM
Ae1s 1ybiuiano ue paxo0oq oym SIOYISIA }SOIMy

o}
(o]

1sed ay3 ul 31 passpisuod pey Asyy ples

(%E¥) J|ey ueyy Joamay pue duy e payooq 194 J0u aAey 4aAamoy

'syuapuodsal 9say] "SYIUOW XIS 1Xau 9y} ul eate syl }sIA 01 A9yl

K19n/38YMBWOS 1B OYM ,'SI9J9pISU0), 10 ‘spadsold apisyinos
9|1eas ale Aay3 pajedipul ,,SI0MUSIA-UOU JO Ssiapenb-aaiyy AjjesN -

'(s3d 92+) UBIP[IYd Yum saljiwey
9q 01 Ajoyj1] a1ow Ajpuediiubis alam pue GG Jo abe ayl Japun
2Jam Jeak SIy} SIOUSIA PB1ISAUOD ISOW ‘91 02Z/SL0Z WOJ) YIYys e u| =

(%01) 1931e|N 9de|d jid pue (%cl) 3|PasN
9oeds ayl buipnppul sailiAlle eale Jo Alauien e ul sajedidilied
10}ISIA Pa1IBAUOD abeuane ay] (%69) S|910y ul buikels payiodal
Ayuolew ayy pue ‘(9%85) sasodind aunsia|/uoijeden 1oy eale

9yl bunisin a1am Asyl paiedipul SI0}ISIA SPISYINOS 9|11edS 1SON =

's1ybiu /¢ 1e Aeis Jo yibua| 5,91.02/S 102 19A0 asealdul ue
—sybiu g € sem ,SIOMSIA BPISYINOS 3|13eas buowe Aeis Jo yibus)
abelane ayy ‘puy *(s1d ¢+) duy Jusdal 1sow JI9y3 Uo eale ay}

ur 1ybiu ayy Juads ,SIONSIA SPISYINOS B]11edS Q| Ul 6 UBY) SIOIN =

sabueyd uonisodwor) 103}ISIA



Y21easayPNUZH®
808.°L.8° /LY | W03 yd1easandlewigy MMM

A1) sesuey] | 9|jInuojuag | uosueag | pjayybulids

aduaLIadx3 )jn4 S,4oW0ISND) INOA 1DIASY

HOYVdS3dd 1IMHVIN

daCcH

inoA Jjuey]

66


http://www.h2rmarketresearch.com/

[ DeanRunyan

SEATTLE SOUTHSIDE
Travel Impacts, 2003-2019p

May 2020

SEATTLE N%
SOUTHSIDE AN

Regional Tourism Authority




68

SEATTLE SOUTHSIDE

TRAVEL IMPACTS, 2003-2019p
TUKWILA, SEATAC, & DES MOINES

Prepared for the

Seattle Southside Regional Tourism Authority
3100 S. 176" Street
Seattle, Washington 98188

Prepared by

Dean Runyan Associates, Inc.
833 S.W. Eleventh Avenue, Suite 920
Portland, Oregon 97205
(503) 226-2973

www.deanrunyan.com

May 2020



SEATTLE SOUTHSIDE TRAVEL IMPACTS, 2003-2019P

TUKWILA, SEATAC & DES MOINES

This study, prepared for Seattle Southside Regional Tourism Authority, documents the
economic significance of the travel industry in the Seattle Southside area of King County
from 2003 through 2019. The estimates for 2019 are preliminary. The separate estimates
for Tukwila, SeaTac and Des Moines are reported at a summary level for 2019 only.
Overnight visitor volume estimates and average spending estimates for the larger Seattle
Southside are also provided in this report.

REPORT CONTENTS
The main body of this report contains five sections:

e Seattle Southside Travel Trends (annual estimates of economic impacts and lodging
sales for the larger Seattle Southside)

e Travel Impacts in Des Moines, SeaTac and Tukwila (summary estimates for 2019p,
only)

e Visitor Volume (major trends and characteristics)

e Detailed Spending and Visitor Volume Tables

o Detailed Impact Tables

The report also contains appendices that provide an overview of methodology and
definitions of terms and concepts.

INTERPRETATION OF IMPACT ESTIMATES

Users of this report should be aware of the following with respect to the interpretation of
these estimates:

e All monetary estimates in this report are expressed in currentdollars. There is no
adjustment for inflation.

e Sub-county estimates such as contained in this report are necessarily less reliable
than county and state level estimates because of data limitations. Nonetheless,
these estimates were generally prepared with the same methodology used to
estimate county and state level travel impacts and visitor volume.

DEAN RUNYAN ASSOCIATES PAGE 1

69



SEATTLE SOUTHSIDE TRAVEL TRENDS
Travel spending in the Seattle Southside increased by 2.3 percent from 2018 to 2019p.

Travel-generated earnings and tax receipts also increased. This was the tenth consecutive
year of growth in the Seattle Southside travel industry.

Seattle Southside Travel Trends

Spending Earnings Employment Tax Receipts ($Millions)
($Millions) ($Millions) Local State Total
2003 395.9 124.3 4,480 15.3 21.4 36.7
2004 422.5 130.2 4,540 16.2 22.7 38.9
2005 461.4 141.9 4,790 17.8 24.5 42.3
2006 486.9 146.8 4,720 22.7 25.6 48.3
2007 528.0 157.7 4,880 25.2 27.7 52.9
2008 532.3 158.0 4,810 25.7 27.6 53.3
2009 463.9 149.5 4,530 22.7 24.9 47.6
2010 473.5 147.6 4,350 22.7 25.1 47.9
2011 504.9 149.8 4,340 24.0 26.4 50.4
2012 537.5 157.2 4,460 25.7 28.2 53.9
2013 564.6 169.2 4,640 27.3 29.7 57.0
2014 620.5 184.5 4,840 30.3 32.5 62.8
2015 665.0 194.7 4,870 33.3 35.1 68.3
2016 690.5 203.2 4,910 34.9 36.9 71.8
2017 721.2 211.8 4,950 36.5 38.6 75.1
2018 770.3 230.0 5,120 38.5 40.8 79.2
2019p 787.9 240.3 5,110 39.1 41.8 80.9
Annual Percentage Change
17-19p 2.3 4.5 -0.2 1.6 2.5 2.1
03-19p 4.4 4.2 0.8 6.0 4.3 5.1
Seattle Southside Lodging Sales Lodging sales (in current
$300 - dollars) were $281.6
million in 2019

= $250 4 (preliminary), an increase

2 4200 - of 0.2 percent over 2018.

=

E $150 - Source: Washington State

ﬁ Department of Revenue. Lodging

£ $100 - sales calculated from 1% Additional

B Hotel/Motel tax for Des Moines,

~ $50 1 SeaTac and Tukwila.

$0 —r—rr T

04 0506 070809 10111213 14151617 18 19

DEAN RUNYAN ASSOCIATES PAGE 2



TRAVEL IMPACTS IN DES MOINES, SEATAC AND TUKWILA

The preliminary 2019 impact estimates for the three cities within the Seattle Southside are
shown below. Lodging sales are shown in the pie chart. In general, these estimates are a
function of lodging sales, the number of private homes for visiting friends and relatives, and
the volume of sales in other types of establishments that serve visitors (e.g., restaurants,
entertainment and retail). (Note: These small area estimates are necessarily less reliable
than the estimates for the larger Seattle Southside due to data limitations.)

Travel Impacts within Seattle Southside, 2019p

Travel Tax Receipts
Spending Earnings Employment Local State Total
($Million)  ($Million) (jobs) ($Million)  ($Million)  ($Million)
Des Moines 49.4 15.7 330 2.5 2.6 5.1
SeaTac 311.0 101.5 2,130 15.4 16.5 31.9
Tukwila 427.5 123.1 2,650 21.2 22.7 43.9
Seattle Southside 787.9 240.3 5,110 39.1 41.8 80.9

Lodging Sales within Seattle Southside

2019p Although Tukwila has the

Des Moines greatest estimated visitor

— $10.9 spending, SeaTac has 66
$83.4/ percent of all lodging
. sales. However, its share
of visitor-related sales in
SeaTac, food services,

186.8 . o
5 entertainment and retail is
comparatively smaller.

Source: Washington State Department of Revenue.
Lodging sales calculated from 1% Additional Hotel/Motel
tax for Des Moines, SeaTac and Tukwila.

DEAN RUNYAN ASSOCIATES PAGE 3



72

VISITOR VOLUME

All Overnight Person-Nights

4.2 -
4.1

4.0

3.9 4

3.8
3.7 /

3.6
3.5 /

3.3

Visitor Nights (Millions)

331/ \_ /
121/ \_~

3,0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T

03 05 07 09 11 13 15 17

Hotel/Motel/STVR
Visitor-Nights, 2019p

Seattle Southside

King County

Washington State

19p

0% 20% 40% 60%  80%

Visitor Air Arrivals at SeaTac International Airport

Domestic Flights
7.5 4

7.0 -

100%

s /

5.5 1

4

Visitor Arrivals (Millions)

4.52/

4.0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T

The estimate of all overnight
visitor-nights (the number of
nights that all individual visitors
stayed in the Seattle Southside) is
shown in the top line chart. The
overall trend in visitor volume
corresponds to the trends in
travel spending and related
impacts shown previously. In
2019p volume increased about
1.5 percent.

More than eighty percent of all
visitor nights in the Seattle
Southside are attributable to
Hotel/Motel/Rented Home stays.
This percentage is much greater
than for King County and
Washington State. (See bar chart
to left. STVR are short term rental
homes subject to lodging tax.)

Visitor air arrivals (domestic only)
to SeaTac airport have also
increased for the tenth year in a
row. (Note: Visitor air arrivals do
not include return flights that were
initiated at SeaTac, nor passengers
making connecting flights.)

Source: U.S. Department of
Transportation Airline Origin and
Destination survey.

DEAN RUNYAN ASSOCIATES

PAGE 4



DETAILED SPENDING AND VISITOR VOLUME TABLES

The following three tables are inter-related. The first, Visitor Spending by Type of Traveler
Accommodation, reports the total annual spending estimates for each type of visitor. The
second, Average Expenditures for Overnight Visitors, reports the average daily and average
trip expenditures for each type of visitor for 2019p. The third table, Overnight Visitor
Volume, reports annual visitor volume for each type of visitor. Volume is broken out in
terms of trips and nights and visitors (persons) and travel parties. In general, multiplication
of an average spending numbers with the appropriate volume number will yield the annual
total spending number for that type of visitor. (See appendix B.)

Day travel represents less than four percent of all visitor spending in the Seattle Southside
($2.5 million in 2019p). Due to data limitations, reliable estimates of visitor volume and

average expenditures cannot be reported for day travel.

Visitor Spending by Type of Traveler Accommodation ($Million), 2010-2019p

2010 2012 2014

2015 2016 2017 2018

2019p

All Overnight 447.1 506.9 588.4
Hotel, Motel, STVR*  431.3  489.5 570.2
Other Overnight 15.8 17.4 18.2

Day Travel 18.9 21.5 23.7

Spending at Destination 466.0 5284 612.1

634.1 659.3 688.0 734.4
615.9 640.6 668.7 714.2
18.2 18.7 19.2 20.2
24.4 25.0 25.9 27.5
658.5 684.3 713.9 761.9

751.1
730.4
20.7
28.4
779.5

Note: Destination spending does not include ground transportation expenditures for travel to other
Washington destinations. STVR stands for short term vacation rentals or rented homes subject to lodging tax.

Average Expenditures for Overnight Visitors, 2019p

Travel Party Visitor (Person) Party Length of

Day Trip Day Trip Size Stay (nights)

Hotel, Motel, STVR $438  $1,039 $208 $487 2.1 2.4
Other Overnight $148 $427 $56 $163 2.6 2.9
All Overnight $389 $968 $183 $451 2.2 2.4

Overnight Visitor Volume, 2017-2019p

Visitor-Nights (000)

Party-Nights (000)

2017 2018  2019p

2017 2018 2019p

Hotel, Motel, STVR 3,339 3,454 3,515
Other Overnight 575 588 590
All Overnight 3,914 4,043 4,105

1,576 1,640 1,666
256 262 263
1,832 1,902 1,929

Visitor-Trips (000)

Party-Trips (000)

2017 2018  2019p

2017 2018  2019p

Hotel, Motel, STVR 1,425 1,474 1,500 665 691 703

Other Overnight 160 164 164 71 73 73

All Overnight 1,585 1,638 1,664 736 764 776
DEAN RUNYAN ASSOCIATES PAGE 5

73


MeaganM
Highlight

MeaganM
Highlight

MeaganM
Highlight


DETAILED IMPACT TABLES

The following table shows spending estimates for all categories of visitors, including day
travel, earnings and employment estimates by industry sector, and travel-generated tax
receipts.’

Seattle Southside
Travel Impacts, 2010-2019p

2010 2012 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019p

Total Direct Travel Spending ($Million)

Destination Spending 466.0 528.4 612.1 658.5 684.3 713.9 761.9 779.5

Other Travel* 7.5 9.1 8.4 6.5 6.2 7.3 8.4 8.4

Total Direct Spending 473.5 537.5 620.5 665.0 690.5 721.2 770.3 787.9
Visitor Spending by Commodity Purchased ($Million)

Accommodations 158.4 178.5 219.9 250.1 262.8 275.7 294.9 2959

Food Service 130.0 149.2 171.1 183.8 192.7 201.7 216.6 228.0

Retail, Entertainment & Local Transport 177.6 200.7 221.1 224.6 228.8 236.5 250.4 255.7

Destination Spending 466.0 528.4 612.1 658.5 684.3 713.9 761.9 779.5
Industry Earnings Generated by Travel Spending ($Million)

Accom. & Food Serv. 111.1 118.5 138.6 147.1 154.3 161.6 175.9 184.9

Retail, Entertainment & Local Transport  36.5 38.7 459 47.7 489 50.2 54.1 554

Total Direct Earnings 147.6 157.2 184.5 194.7 203.2 211.8 230.0 240.3
Industry Employment Generated by Travel Spending (Jobs)

Accom. & Food Serv. 3,190 3,270 3,580 3,620 3,670 3,720 3,870 3,870

Retail, Entertainment & Local Transport 1,160 1,190 1,260 1,250 1,240 1,230 1,250 1,250

Total Direct Employment 4350 4,460 4,840 4,870 4,910 4,950 5,120 5,110
Government Revenue Generated by Travel Spending ($Million)

Local Tax Receipts 22,7 25.7 303 33.3 349 36.5 385 39.1

State Tax Receipts 25.1 282 325 351 369 386 40.8 41.8

Total Local & State 479 539 628 683 71.8 75.1 79.2  80.9

Details may not add to totals due to rounding.
*QOther Travel reflects ground transportation expenditures for travel to other Washington destinations.

! The economic impacts for the Seattle Southside do not include travel to and from SeaTac International
Airport. This passenger air travel accounted for 16,100 jobs with earnings of $1.7 billion in 2019.

DEAN RUNYAN ASSOCIATES PAGE 6

74



HOYUVY3S3d LIMHVIN
dZH

:Aq paJsedalid

Apnis 10edw| J1WOU023 shg a|nuNys

4 3dISHLNOS
LA L 173S

75



‘|eAIS1Ul IUBPUUOD %GE B 1R %E C-/+
JO J0J4J9 JO ulSiew wnwixew e 3ulpinodd Apnis SIYl J0J POMIIAIIUI 9J9M SJUSpuUO0dsal G98‘T JO |10 Y

I1dINVS

"'S9|RNYs ay1 suntedap uodn wayi uiniad pue sAaains
9U1 1IN0 [|Y 03 payIse a4oMm s1a3uassed pue SIaAp 9|1InYs Agq painglilsip a4am sASAINS YL ‘Syjuow g
3sed ay1 4o} sng 9|1 nys ay3 3uipid 3soyl 3uowe paldnpuod sem ASAINS sng 3|RNYS IpISYiInos 9jneas ayL

JONIIANV 139¥V1

"J93U2YINO0S P|SIASIM Y3 USIA
01 3|1NYS Y1 pash oym asoyl Jo 3|jyoud e apinouad se ||om se SI1apld sSng 9|1INYS WoJ) palesauasd anuanal
duiddoys a1ewnss 01 sem Apnis 10edw| d1lou023 sng a|RnNYs apIsyinos ajneas ayy jo asodind ay

3S0OddNd

MBINIDAQ YI3l0ud

76



Adewwing saAllNJ39X3



*SU0IID[NI|0I
ay1 Ul papnaul a4am 0O0°TS UYL SS3| pUD GZ$ UDYL 2J0W JU3dS OYm asoyl AjuQ *S)nsaJ BUIPDIJSILU 0 PD3I| UDI YIIYM ‘UDAW 3Y] SO Yons ‘SISAIDUD [DI1ISII0IS UO
193{f2 230U0NI0d0.dSIP D 3ADY UDI SUOHDAIZSGO [DNSNUN 3S3Y ] "SUOHDAISSGO J3YI0 WO 3DUDISIP [DIIUDISGNS D S3I| 1043 15 DIDP D Ul UOHDAIZSGO UD S| IBIAN0 LY,

‘eaJe 9y3 ul Juads Asuow jo Junowe ay3y pue diysiapud
aseaJoul djay Ajuo [|Im 92IAIS 31INYS 9yl pusWWOI3J 0}
paau Aay3 5|001 93 SJ0MSIA SUIAID *(%G) mo| Ajdie} SI zzng
YINow-}O-pJOM BY] ‘UDAIMOH SPUdIJ} J1I9Y3 0 SODIAIDS
91 PUBWIWOI3J P|NOM SJBPIJ |1INYS UL Ul Y31 ‘Ajjeuly «

"9|1NYS ay3 Jo ssauljsw a3yl yum
paysies asam Asy) paiedipul %58 ‘Ajleuonippy "spl sy}
JO 1J0oJw 02 3y] pue 3|1Nys ay3l 4o ssauljues|d ayil ‘JaAlIp ay3
JO ssauljpually ayl yum paysnes Aian/1eymawos asam Asayl
paledipul Siapld Uual ul aulu ueyl aJo|\ ‘sSng aj\xlnys ayl

uo 92ualadxa J19Y3 YUMm paysues AISA 919m SI1apld 9|RNYS =

"(8GTS "SA 06TS) Jow Suipuads saleis payun
Y31 9pISINO woJj SulISIA 3soyl yim ‘ua1uad 3uiddoys aya
01 di} JIayl uo ,uosiad/g/TS punoJe puads siapli 3[RNYS =

'191U32 Suiddoys ay3 1e sunoy ¢ punoJe
puads pue 3uluip pue suiddoys Ajluewlud aJe J91uadyinos
PI21JASOM 943 0] [9ALJ] 0} 9|1INYS 9Y3} 9SN OYM 3SOY] =

"|210Y J19Y1 JO XS9p JU0J} Y31 1B IAIDS

9yl 1Inoge Jeay 1sow pue ‘9[;nys ay3 yodied 03 s|a10y Jo
|njpuey e asn Ajuo eale apISYIN0S 3|11e3S 3Y] 01 SID|IABI] =

32IAI3S 1e3JD) SIdHYO SNYI|NRNYS 3L



MeaganM
Highlight


1aW01sN) JNoA mouy

HOYVdSdd 1IMIVIN dZH

Y2JeasayP|INYZH®D 0

0859 OW ‘playSunds ol
D 31NS ‘peoy dljqnday 3 LTLT

onc)
808L'LLS" LTV 9

iNOAjUEYL

w02 yaieasaslajewlzy@annolese

79



80



City of Tukwila

Allan Ekberg, Mayor

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning and Economic Development
FROM: Brandon Miles, Business Relations Manager
CC: Mayor Ekberg

DATE: December 1, 2020

SUBJECT: Experience Tukwila: Performance Measures

ISSUE
Discussion of performance measures for Experience Tukwila.

BACKGROUND

This year Tukwila launched its social media to promote the City to people within the greater
Seattle region (within 50 miles of the City). These social medial accounts are part of the City’s
overall campaign to help to bring more people to the City and to help the City brand itself in the
region. The overall campaign is called, “Experience Tukwila.” Experience Tukwila will have
several components:

1. Digqital Platforms

Digital platforms will include social media (Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, and LinkedIn),
website, and direct email. These platforms will digitally promote Tukwila, its community
members, its businesses, and everything that makes the City unique. The digital
platforms will include custom photography and videos highlighting the City. The digital
platforms will also allow the City to highlight specific events with unique landing pages
for those events.

2. Small Events and Festivals

Events and festivals will be sponsored under the “Experience Tukwila” name. Previous
events include the Rave Green Run, International Food Truck Rally, and Drag Queen
Bowling. The City will work to develop and support additional events and festivals
coming into the City.

3. Sponsorship

The City will sponsor third party activities in the City, such as Seattle Chocolates
Haunted House, Starfire Sports soccer tournaments, the Museum of Flight. These
activities do not fall under the small events and festivals given that they are usually
longer in duration activities and are on a larger scale.

DISCUSSION

Performance measures and key performance indicators (KPIs) are important in allowing the City
to track the success of activities. The following outlines staff’s initial ideas for performance
measure and KPls for Experience Tukwila. These are draft and staff would like to work with
PED as part of the budget process to identify the appropriate performance measures and KPls
for Experience Tukwila. Staff will also be reviewing how other similar organizations track
success of their efforts.

81



82

INFORMATIONAL MEMO
Page 2

Overall Performance Measures for Experience Tukwila

Performance measures need to be linked to the overall goals of an initiative or campaign. The
following are the overall goals of Experience Tukwila.

Performance Measure

Target

Method Tracking

Increase total hotel occupancy | TBD While tracking these

and hotel revenue. performance measures is
simple, tracking how

Increase the total number of TBD Experience Tukwila impacted

visitors (day and night) the overall City economy

coming to the City. would be difficult. The City
could use surveys to track

Increase dwell time people TBD impacts of the City’s activities.

spend in the City when For example, if someone visits

visiting. the Experience Tukwila
website, we could ask them if

Increase total revenue at TBD they plan or have visited the

entertainment establishments, City. However, this creates a

restaurants, and retailers. causation versus correlation
issue.
Cell phone data might also be
able to be used to track
certain outcomes.

Public Perception of the City. | TBD In 2017 the City completed a

survey of Puget Sound
resident’s perceptions of the
City. This survey could be
duplicated on a regular basis
to see if the City’s marketing
efforts on changing how
people in the region view the
City.

Key Performance Indicators for Certain Activities

Website
KPIs Goals Method of Tracking

Total Sessions TBD Google Analytics
Total Unique Visitors TBD

Total Page Views TBD

Click Throughs TBD

Videos Viewed TBD

Total Session time. TBD

Geographic location of TBD

visitors.

Specific pages viewed TBD

Ranking on Google Search

Top of page 1.

Searching “Tukwila” on
Google

https://tukwilawa.sharepoint.com/sites/mayorsoffice/cc/CC Docs/Old W/2020 Info Memos/Experience Tukwila, Peformance Measures 12-7 PED.doc




INFORMATIONAL MEMO
Page 3

Social Media

KPls Goals Method
Total engagements (likes, TBD Track usage on social media
shares/retweets, comments). accounts.
Reach/Impressions TBD Free analytics provided by
social media companies.
Tags/mentions TBD Free analytics provided by
social media companies
Hashtag utilization TBD Free analytics provided by
social media companies
Click through rate TBD Free analytics provided by
social media companies
Video views TBD Free analytics provided by
social media companies
Check Ins TBD Free analytics provided by
social media companies
Social Listening reports TBD TBD
Email Marketing
Open Rate TBD Tools provided with email
Clickthrough rate TBD management systems

(Constant Contact, Mail
Chimp, etc.)

Small Events and Festivals

Media Impressions

TBD

TBD

Tickets Sold TBD Tracking of tickets sold

Total Attendance TBD Tracking admission and
headcounts.

Revenue from event TBD Ticket sales and vendor sales
reports.

Media impressions of event. TBD TBD

Sponsorships

Attendance at event or TBD Online sales and headcount.

activity.

Media mentions TBD Self-reporting and google key
word monitoring.

Hashtag usage TBD Free analytics provided by

social media companies

FINANCIAL IMPACT

N/A. Many KPIs can be monitored using free tools on google and social media accounts.
Updating the public perception study would incur a cost to have a firm complete the study.

RECOMMENDATION

Forward to December 14 Committee of the Whole Meeting for discussion from full council.

ATTACHMENTS

e Screen Shots of Selected Social Media Analytics

https://tukwilawa.sharepoint.com/sites/mayorsoffice/cc/CC Docs/Old W/2020 Info Memos/Experience Tukwila, Peformance Measures 12-7 PED.doc

83



84



Screen Shots of Selected Social Media Analytics

LinkedIn (Launched in October of 2020)

W Southcenter - Twitter Search / Tv. X mf (3) Experience Tukwila: Compan: X -+

€ = C @ linkedincom/company/68669366/admin/

m Q Search

i Apps

A Experience Tukwila  Superadmin view

New All Pages + Content
L~ e

Experience Tukwila

Government Administration - Tukwila, WA - 153 followers

e o £ @

lobs Messaging  Notifications ~ Me'w

L.

Home

Analytics ¥ Activity

Worl

¢

Advertise

View as member

Admin tools

- e SR UL T T —

Your point of contact for doing business and investing in the City of Tukwila, Washington.

Analytics

54 410%
Unique visitors
Share trending articles

89 a43%
New followers

Invite connections ta follow

2.1K a51%
Post impressions

Start a post

3 0%

Custom button clicks

Manage @
I—_,/ Start a post g
B Events
(&3] Photo 3 video B Document al. Poll Show all events
H# Hashtags
Updates #tukowil

Filter by: Page updates v
#greaterseattle
4 s

#experiencetukwila

1 follower

Posted by Alison Wendler « 11/27/2020 = |« Sponsor now sss

Show posts about Experience Tukwila

A Experience Tukwila
followers
®

This Black Friday. many are heading to Westfield Southcenter for all their holiday
shopping needs, With over 200 stares, it is the largest shopping mall in the Pacific
Northwest, making Tukwila one of the PNW's top shopping destinations.

85



Facebook (Launched in May of 2020)

W Southcenter - Twitter Search /Tv. X @) (1) Experience Tukwila | Faceboc X +

« C @ facebookcom/ExperienceTukwila/?ref=page_internal * 0

Apps

ot b |
f arch Facebo i . Brandon + © 5 -
Manage Page ' Experience Tukwila # Edit Follow © ViewasVisitor Q.

"’ Experience Tukwila Insights "’ Create Post

Last 28 days : Nov 3 - Nov 30 »
155,880 Photo/Video Get Messages @ Feeling/Activity
If you'd like, you can switch to the i
classic Facebook.com for 48 hours to EecpleiBeacncd
manage your Page.
Create @iLive [ Event @ Offer  Job
Post Engagements 26,472

Home . x
293 Experience Tukwila

“
Are you decking your halls and donning festive lights this season?
Enter Tukwila’s Holiday Lights Contest! They will be awarding prizes
for both homes and businesses. Enter by December 5th!

Page Likes
News Feed

Manage Shop
Ad Center
Experience Tukwila, Seattle Metro’s
most
accessible destination for affordable
fun.
il 787 people like this

845 people follow this

Facebook Ad Currently Running

W Southcenter - Twitter Search /Tv. X @) Experience Tukwila - Posts | Face X +

d=2294023487600298notif_id=16066191590486788&notif t=feed comment&ref=notif Yo e :

<« (6 @& facebook.com/ExperienceTukwila/posts/213667067000224?comment

A

nr

' Experience Tukwila

P

Experience Tukwila
v " I

Tasty food and an international cultural experience are both on the menu at Spice

Bridge Food Hall. Featuring 8 women-owned restaurants that serve food from

around the world, Spice Bridge is perfect for adventurous eaters of all ages.

N

Spice Bridge: The New Food Hall for Adventurous Learn More
Eaters

49,843 8,061
People Reached Engagements




W Experience Tukwila #MaskupTuk X

£ Apps

c

Twitter (Launched in May of 2020)

@ analyticsitwitter.com/user/ExpTukwila/home

W Analytics Home Tweets Morewv

28 day summary with change over previous period

Tweets Tweet impressions
214 2791.7% 99.8K 12,829.4%
Nov 2020 - 30 days

W Twitter Analytics account overvie X 9 Experience Tukwila - Posts | Face: X ‘ +

Profile visits Mentions

2,100 r8,3000% 53 t783.3%

TWEET HIGHLIGHTS
TOP Tweet eamed 5,892 impressions

Part of us say this is cute, while the other
part of us is pretty creeped out, not going to
lie. #catsofinstagram
twitter.com/CityofKent/sta. ..

32 w21
View Tweet activity ‘ View all Tweet activity

TOP Follower foliowed by 36.5K people

TOP tion eamed 229 er
Seattle Seawolves
@SeawolvesRugby - Nov 1
Forwards love a good trick — and love a
good treat. @

Shoutout to a stellar crew today for
volunteering at @WestfieldSC and
@ExpTukwila’s Halloween event! We loved
interacting from afar with familiar faces and
new fans alike. #HappyHalloween

O AVAR AL DL e

ExperienceTukwila v ‘ v GotoAds

Followers

126 141

NOV 2020 SUMMARY

Tweets

214

Praofile visits

2,101

New followers

WARWIIL

Experience Tukwila #MaskupTukwila @exptukwila

Page updated daily

Tweet impressions

100K

Mentions

57

87



88



City of Tukwila

Allan Ekberg, Mayor

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning and Economic Development Committee
FROM: Brandon Miles, Business Relations Manager

CC: Mayor Ekberg

DATE: December 1, 2020

SUBJECT: Amending and Extending the City’s Interim, COVID-19 Policy on Outdoor
Seating and Temporary Signage

ISSUE
Affirm the revised interim policy regarding outdoor seating and temporary signage for
businesses in response to COVID-19.

BACKGROUND

On July 20, 2020 the City Council affirmed the Mayor’s emergency rules regarding temporary
outdoor seating and easing the requirements regarding the display of temporary signage. These
emergency rules were put in place in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and the associated
rules put in the place by the Governor’s Office to promote social distancing in public settings.
Outdoor seating provided certain benefits to restaurants in meeting the requirements of the
Governor’s orders. The City’s current emergency rules are set to expire on January 15, 2021.

On November 15, 2020, the Governor announced a new round of COVID-19 restrictions
intended to help slow the transmission of COVID-19. These new restrictions prevent restaurants
from having indoor seating. Outdoor seating, including in a tent, is permitted, under the
Governor’s current guidelines. The Governor’s new restrictions are scheduled to run until
December 18. However, it is possible they could be extended or reimposed at a later date.

City Administration has made the following changes to the emergency rules:

1. Extend the date of the emergency rules to June 30, 2021.
2. Clarify the tent and membrane structure policy:
a. Tents and membranes up to 400 square feet do not require a permit.
b. The City will create a flat fee ($50.00) of permit for tents and membranes over
400 square feet. The flat fee will cover all require permits and inspections.

DISCUSSION

As the Council is aware, the City is currently operating under a State of Emergency due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Tukwila Municipal Code (TMC) 2.57.040 (3) requires the City Council to
affirm any rules or regulations related to the protection of life, environment, and property affect
the emergency. These emergency rules for tents are needed to allow businesses in the City to
operate in a safe manner. In addition, the rules for temporary signage are needed because
many businesses are doing pick up and drop off to encourage social distancing. Signage will
help direct motorists to businesses and pickup/drop off points.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
Minimal and would include a small amount of loss revenue related to temporary signage.

89



INFORMATIONAL MEMO
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION
Affirm the revised emergency policy provided by City Administration. Forward to the December

14 Committee of the Whole meeting and special meeting on the same night for adoption.

ATTACHMENTS
¢ Revised, Interim Outdoor Seating and Signage Allowance for Businesses in Response to

COVID-19.

https://tukwilawa.sharepoint.com/sites/mayorsoffice/cc/CC Docs/Old W/2020 Info Memos/covid19 amendment for outdoor seating temp sign.doc

90



City of Tukwila

Interim Outdoor Seating and Signage Allowance for Businesses in
Response to COVID-19

SUBJECT: Temporary policy to allow outdoor seating and temporary signage
during the Public Health Emergency related to the COVID-19
pandemic.

PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to temporarily allow outdoor seating and
temporary signage and issue any approvals in an expeditious manner while
ensuring safety protocols are in place. This policy will be effective on June
15, 2020 and will expire on_June 30, 2021 Jan-10,-2021-unless otherwise
terminated or extended.

SCOPE: This policy applies to all City of Tukwila businesses.
DEFINITIONS:

1. “Public Health Emergency” shall mean any such emergency declared by the Governor
of the State of Washington pursuant to his or her powers under chapters 38.08, 38.52
and 43.06 RCW, any such emergency declared by the King County Executive or the
Mayor of the City of Tukwila pursuant to chapter 38.52 RCW.

POLICY:

During the current Public Health Emergency and in compliance with the Washington State
Governor’s “Safe Start” phased approach to business reopening, the City of Tukwila shall
establish the following policy to expedite approval of any outdoor seating areas and to
relax temporary signage requirements:

1) Businesses are allowed to set up outdoor seating areas in parking spaces on
private property, and no land use approval is required to deviate from the number
of parking spaces required by City code, provided the following conditions shall
be met:

a) No fire lanes are blocked

b) No fencing nor other containment feature is to be placed around the outdoor
seating area that does not allow openings for safe egress/exiting from the
seating area. In case of an emergency, people seated in the outdoor area
should be able to exit the premises without passing through the building.

c) Outdoor lighting shall be provided to ensure safe exiting from the dining area.
Any outdoor lighting fixtures shall be rated for outdoor use. Note: electrical
work will still require a permit.

d) Tents may be used, subject to the following requirements:

|. Tents and membrane structures up to 400 square feet do not require a

permit. Other permits for heating, plumbing, and electrical may still be

required.

Page 10of 2

91



92

. Tents and membrane structures having an area greater than 400
square feet require a permit. The City will charge a flat $50.00 (not
included credit card fees). The permit fee shall cover the building,
mechanical, electrical, plumbing plan reviews, inspections, and permit
requirements of the Department of Community Development, Fire, and

Public Works Department.

2) Temporary signs informing the public that the business is open, or other directional
signs, such as designating curb side pickup areas, shall not require a temporary
sign permit, provided the following conditions shall be met:

a) Up to a maximum of 4 signs per business are allowed, and the maximum size
of the signs shall not exceed 64 sq. ft. total for all 4 signs. These signs can only
be placed on the premises of the business. Signs are not allowed to be placed
off premises or within public right of way or sidewalks.

b) Sight distance for cars entering and exiting the driveway shall not be blocked,
and signs shall not be placed on sidewalks.

c) Enforcement of the following prohibited signs is temporarily suspended:

i) Strings of pennants, balloons, and similar devices.
ii) The use of portable signs (A-boards, wire frames).

All other Tukwila Sign Code regulations remain in effect.

EFFECTIVE DATE: June 15, 2020, Amended December 1, 2020.

APPROVAL:

Mayor Allan Ekberg De’Sean Quinn, Council President

Jack Pace, Director Community Development Kari Sand City Attorney

Jay Wittwer, Fire Chief

Page 2 of 2



0202 ‘0€ J3qwianoN paiepdn e|Imn] jo A1) I

(9P
(o)}
170z 01 pauodisod v ada 1202 sjuswpuawy apo) SuidaayasnoH | 0¢
asuodsaJ Ayuno) Sury 3uipuad v ana Suluoz/uonexsuuy peoy el||o |62
[1ouno) Aq panosddy ue|dydopn
dHHDIS ‘day ejimyn] Se aAJas [|IMm PO3TIIN IND v ada -1 sa1epdn diyssaulied ssaussajawoH 1 SuisnoH Sury yinos |°ge
siseq 3ul||04 uo paidadoe suoned|ddy v a3 Al s1oeJluo)/suonedlddy Suipund xe| 3uiSpoq |*Lz
919|dwo) v a3 ¥ sa|dipulld Suipund wsuNo| |'9g
919|dwo) q aja v 0s9Y 394 13 d1epdn 8uisnoH [e1uay | 'S¢
L/T1 v asa 14 alepdn apo) uoISIAIpgNS |42
v ana ¥ uolled||ddy juesn weidoud SulpAdray |‘€¢
919|dwo) v anda 1 3uluoz wuelu| — uonejuswsa|dw| ueld giL |2z
919|dwo) <! a3 v-€ Suipun4 10V S34VD Auno) 8uny |'TZ
SUEIE]Y
Jd 01 piemuod ‘@19|dwo) q ana € UOMBAIY “difepepn :S1uswaa43y Jusawdojaaaq Suiwoddn | 0T
919|dwo) q a3 € ssao0ud sojes puel ['6T
919|dwo) v aosda € 06ST dH :2dueuipJQ |'8T
919|dwo) q a3 € (6TD 03 osuodsau) [esua49p 994 9SU|| ssauisng |/ T
919|dw o) yJ4om jo 2do3s Jo mainad gid q aja € ue|d uoidy 8uisnoH |91
919|dwo) g a3 ard [9POIA Je3A g 183png ‘A1031SIH ‘M3IAIDAQ Xe] Sul8poT ['ST
Suio8up q a3 - 6T-AINOD wou) Aisn0day ssauisng | ¢T
dul03uQ d asi v-¢ Aianoday ssauisng paie|dy 6T-AINOD | €T
919|dwo) g a3 €T s3uiyalig SuipuyAepy pue Suipuesg | 2T
€/ 04y ‘€1/T Sulyoug <! a3 €T ue|d JuswdojaAaQ Jlwouod3 |'TT
6T-AIAOD 03 @np pjoy uQ v a3 z 3|0J [19uno) —juswiulodde pieog YD d3e||IA eIMINL | 0T
919|dwo) v TOND [4 dIAQD 031 @np ueg eq |eaday :d0uBUIPIO | ‘6
919|dwo) v aja rd wnJoleJow g|] :9JUeUIpJO | '8
919|dwo) v aja rd JOAIBAN 994 91B7 95UDIIT SSaUISNG [BIUDY :UOIIN|OSAY | /
pauodisod 919|dwod 3ulyang o] ana T 91epdn yun Suljemq A1ossanay | ‘9
919|dwo) <! a3 T |9POIN [BloUBUI JBIA-XIS XB] SUIBpOT | G
919|dwo) v a3 T 1uswWdo|aA( J1WOU0I] 3)11e3S JO 1od — uoliedlddy juetg |
919|dwo) v Md/ada T Hoday uonezijpuueyday giL | €
pai1a|dwo) v ada T 10BJ3U0D JUB}NSUOI 3po) Suip|ing | ‘T
(6T-AINOQD 404 uoisioap Atesodwsal) pais|dwo) v asda T suondQ 8ulpuads SuisNoH 3|qepJoyV/90vT aH | T
Suyeug
S9]0N/snie1s T adag 10 uondusag

uejd ¥40M 0207 - @a11Wwo)) JusawdojaAaq d1wouod3 1 Suluue]d 11oUno) AN ejimyng




0202 ‘0€ J3qwianoN paiepdn e|Imn] jo A1) I

TO T20C g ana 120¢ Hoday spueq 3|qep|ing (L€
120¢ v anda 120¢ spJepueis SuISNOH Yinos A3jjeA ejimyny |9
120¢ g ana 120¢ 0YS 404 suone|n3day JuawdojaAaQ PaIUBLIQ Hsuel| | 'GE
120C v a3 120C uondopy ue|d Juawdo|aAa( dIWou0d] | v€

120z Adenuer jnun pauodisod v a4/ada 1202 alepdn apo) a414/8ulp|ing | €€
TO 120z 031 pauodisod g ana 120 SJUBWAA0IdW| SS9204d MIIARY JuswdolaAlq | g€
pa313|dwod ue|d UOIY SUISNOH Ja)je
TT0OT Ul 3q [|!m ‘€T/T |1PUn0)/uep| Ag paisanbay v ana 1202 uondo gL 314N |'T€

uejd ¥40M 0207 - @a11Wwo)) JusawdojaAaq d1wouod3 1 Suluue]d 11oUno) AN ejimyng




	B - SSRTA Return on Investment.pdf
	H2R Market Research.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Website Generates Positive Results
	Visitor Composition Changes
	Slide Number 6


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADPC27D.tmp
	( Thomas McLeod, Chair
	( Kathy Hougardy
	( Zak Idan
	Item
	Recommended Action
	Page
	1. BUSINESS AGENDA
	a. An ordinance to adopt revisions to the Subdivision Code.
	  Jaimie Reavis, Senior Planner
	b. Seattle Southside Regional Tourism Authority: Return on Investment.
	  Brandon Miles, Business Relations Manager
	c. Experience Tukwila:  Performance measures.
	  Brandon Miles, Business Relations Manager
	d. COVID-19:  Amending and renewing emergency rules to allow tents in parking lots and temporary signage.
	  Brandon Miles, Business Relations Manager
	e. 2020 Committee work plan.
	  Laurel Humphrey, Legislative Analyst
	2. MISCELLANEOUS


	AGENDA




